
1

EPPING FOREST LOCAL COUNCILS' LIAISON COMMITTEE

NOTICE OF MEETING
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Date: Monday, 4th July, 2016

Room: Council Chamber Time: 7.30 pm

Democratic Services Officer: M. Jenkins (Governance Directorate)
Tel: (01992) 564607 Email: 
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:

District Council Representatives:

Councillors J Lea (Chairman), E Webster,  M Sartin, A Boyce, B Rolfe and J H Whitehouse

Local Council Representatives:

Clerks and Chairmen/Members of Parish and Town Councils

County Council Representatives:

Members for the following divisions:

North Weald and Nazeing: Councillor A Jackson
Loughton Central: Councillor C Pond
Ongar and Rural: Councillor M McEwen
Epping and Theydon Bois: Councillor Mr J M Whitehouse
Buckhurst Hill and Loughton South: Councillor V Metcalfe
Chigwell and Loughton Broadway: Councillor J Knapman
Waltham Abbey: Councillor Mrs R Gadsby

PLEASE NOTE THE START DATE OF THE MEETING
COFFEE/TEA WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE FROM 7.00 

P.M IN THE MEMBERS ROOM

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  (Pages 5 - 8)

This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate their 
microphones before speaking. The Chairman will read the following webcasting 
announcement:



Local Councils' Liaison Committee Monday, 4 July 2016

2

"I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be 
made available for those that request it.

If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if any member of the 
public wishes to avoid this they should move to the upper public gallery".

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 9 - 18)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 29 March 2016 and 
any matters arising therefrom.

4. COMMUNITY RESILIENCE AND WORKSHOP  (Pages 19 - 20)

(District Council) To receive a presentation on Community Resilience by the Council’s 
Emergency Planning Officer, Peter Charman.

5. SUPERFAST ESSEX RURAL CHALLENGE PROJECT  

(District Council) A presentation will be delivered to members on the progress to date 
and future plans of the Rural Challenge Project fibre broadband rollout, part of the 
Superfast Essex broadband programme.

6. LOCAL CHARTER - REVIEW  (Pages 21 - 64)

(Local Councils) To consider the current position with regard to the review of the Local 
Charter.

7. EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN - PROGRESS  (Pages 65 - 68)

(District Council) To receive a report setting out the current position with regard to 
progress on the development of the new Local Plan for the Epping Forest District.

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

9. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

To note that future meetings of the Committee will be held at 7.30pm on the following 
dates:

 Monday 7 November 2016; and

 Monday 6 March 2017.

The local councils have advised that they felt in would be better to move from 3 
meetings per year to 2. If agreed this would commence in the next council year – 



Local Councils' Liaison Committee Monday, 4 July 2016

3

2017/18.





 
 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROTOCOL FOR WEBCASTING OF 
COUNCIL AND OTHER MEETINGS 



Introduction 
 
The Council has agreed that certain meetings should be the subject of live web 
transmission (‘web casting’), or recorded for subsequent transmission. Fixed cameras are 
located within the Council Chamber for this purpose and there is a mobile unit for use in 
other locations  
 
This protocol has been produced to assist the conduct of web cast meetings and to 
ensure that in doing so the Council is compliant with its obligations under the Data 
Protection Act 1998 and the Human Rights Act 1998.  Accordingly the following will apply 
to all meetings to be web cast by the Council:- 
 
Main provisions: 
 
1. The Chairman of the meeting has the discretion to request the termination or 
suspension of the webcast if in the opinion of the Chairman continuing to webcast 
would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting.  
 
This would include: 
 
(i) Public disturbance or other suspension of the meeting; 
(ii) Exclusion of public and press being moved and supported; 
(iii) Any other reason moved and seconded and supported by the 

Council/Committee or Subcommittee. 
 
2. No exempt or confidential agenda items shall be webcast. 
 
3.  Subject to paragraph 4 below all archived webcasts will be available to view 
on the Council’s website for a period of six months. Council meetings are recorded 
onto DVD, which will be stored in accordance with records management procedures. 
 
4.  Archived webcasts or parts of webcasts shall only be removed from the 
Council’s website if the Monitoring Officer considers that it is necessary because all 
or part of the content of the webcast is or is likely to be in breach of any statutory 
provision or common law doctrine, for example Data Protection and Human Rights 
legislation or provisions relating to confidential or exempt information. 
 
If the Monitoring Officer has decided to take such action she must notify all elected 
Members in writing as soon as possible of her decision and the reasons for it via the 
Bulletin 
 
Council expects the Chair of the Council and the Monitoring Officer to ensure that 
Council meetings are conducted lawfully. Therefore, Council anticipates that the 
need to exercise the power set out above will occur only on an exceptional basis. 
 
5.  Any elected Member who is concerned about any webcast should raise their 
concerns with the Head of Research and Democratic Services 
 



Agenda Front Sheets and Signage at Meetings  
 
On the front of each agenda and on signs to be displayed inside and outside the 
meeting room there will be the following notice:- 
 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 

 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via 
the Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will 
confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in 
accordance with the Council’s published policy. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, 
you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images 
and sound recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of 
the public do not wish to have their image captured they should sit in the 
upper council chamber public gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 
 
Meetings of the Area Plans Subcommittees, District Development Control 
Committee, Licensing Committee and other ‘Quasi Judicial’ Hearings 
  
In any correspondence notifying applicants, supporters or objectors of the meeting 
date on which an application will be heard, the following advice will be included if the 
particular meeting has been chosen to be web cast:-  
 
"Please note that Council meetings may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast 
via the Authority's Internet site. If you do not wish the hearing of your application to 
be filmed, please contact the Senior Democratic Services Officer to discuss their 
concerns. The Council will not film speakers if they do not wish to appear in the 
webcast“  
 
Conduct of Meetings  
 
At the start of each meeting to be filmed, an announcement will be made to the effect 
that the meeting is being or may be web cast, and that the Chairman may also 
terminate or suspend the web casting of the meeting, in accordance with this 
protocol.  This will be confirmed by the Chairman making the following statement:- 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording 
cameras will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image 
will become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery.” 





1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL COUNCILS' LIAISON COMMITTEE 
MINUTES

Date: Tuesday, 29 March 2016 Time: 7.30  - 8.55 pm

Place: Council Chamber, Civic 
Offices, High Street, Epping

Members
Present:

Representing Epping Forest District Council:

Councillors S Jackman (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair), M Sartin, 
G Mohindra and R Morgan

Other Councillors:

Councillors R Bassett and G Waller

Representing Essex County Council:

County Councillors J Knapman and J M Whitehouse

Representing Local Councils:

A Patel (Buckhurst Hill Parish Council), J Browning (Ongar Town 
Council), N Wilkinson (Roydon Parish Council), R Northwood 
(Sheering Parish Council), S De Luca (North Weald Bassett Parish 
Council) and A Kaye (Ongar Town Council)

Apologies: Epping Forest District Council – 

Councillors E Webster, K Angold-Stephens, A Boyce and B Rolfe

Essex County Council – 

Councillors V Metcalfe and C C Pond

Parish/Town Councils: -

V Evans (Buckhurst Hill Parish Council), J Eldridge (Epping Upland 
Parish Council), K O'Brien (Buckhurst Hill Parish Council), E Walsh 
(Loughton Town Council), Mrs K White (Chigwell Parish Council), 
R Balcombe (Fyfield Parish Council) and A Jones (Moreton, 
Bobbingworth & The Lavers Parish Council)

Officers 
Present:

D Macnab (Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Neighbourhoods), K Bean (Planning Policy Manager), C Neilan 
(Landscape Officer & Arboriculturist), A Hendry (Senior Democratic 
Services Officer), S Kits (Social Media and Customer Services 
Officer) and S Tautz (Democratic Services Manager)

By Invitation:  



Local Councils' Liaison Committee Tuesday, 29 March 2016

2

19. CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING 

In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman assumed the chair for this meeting.

20. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman reminded everyone present that the meeting would be broadcast live to 
the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its 
meetings.

21. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 16 November 2015 be 
taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

22. PUBLIC EVENTS - ROAD CLOSURES 

The Director of Neighbourhoods, Mr Macnab, informed the committee of the approach to 
be taken to secure the necessary permissions to close roads traditionally associated 
with Remembrance Day.

It was noted that late last September, Essex Police informed the authority that they 
could no longer facilitate the Remembrance Day Parades, whilst the authority 
appreciated the difficulties Essex Police were encountering at that time; it was not 
possible for the authority to issue road closures throughout the district at such short 
notice.  

Also, in order to issue a road closure notice the local authority must be satisfied that the 
applicant had received the appropriate consents from:

• Essex County Council;
• Fire Service;
• Police;
• The Bus Company (if necessary); and
• The owners of neighbouring properties.

Where the road closure required a main through road to be closed or is one with a Bus 
Service, it would be necessary to advertise the closure to give prior warning to other 
road users.

The applicant must also ensure that adequate public liability insurance (for a minimum of 
£5million) was in place and that a risk assessment had been provided. The authority 
asks for at least 3 months’ notice to deal with applications. Consultations on road 
closures require at least 21 days. This would allow the authority time to receive any 
comments from the consultees and if there were any objections to an event this would 
have to go before a Licensing Sub-committee for consideration.

He encouraged the Local Councils to make their applications in good time, noting that 
EFDC would then issue consents for the parades and that no fee would be required. 
During May 2016 the Licensing section would canvass comments from various 
organisations on this approach. It was stressed that EFDC was here to facilitate the road 
closures but could not offer more than advice; the events would have to be self 
marshalling  and the setting out and subsequent removal of such barriers and signs 



Local Councils' Liaison Committee Tuesday, 29 March 2016

3

would be the responsibility of the local councils. All applications had to be in place by 
November.

Councillor Knapman asked why it was it not possible to have a 5 or 10 year licence 
period as it would be exactly the same for each year. Mr Macnab replied that he was not 
quite sure if this was legally possible to do this. It may well be that a consultation would 
have to take place each time in case there were other, temporary factors that would 
affect the roads.

Councillor Patel wondered if the District Council or the Police would provide some 
training for the marshals. Mr Macnab could not speak for the Police but said that the 
District Council could issue some practical advice.

Councillor Waller noted that Essex Police had their first cohort of Police cadets in 
training and it was their intention that they would be made available for Remembrance 
Day parades.

23. ISSUES RAISED BY LOCAL COUNCILS 

(a) Town and Parish Charter Review

It was noted that the Town and Parish Charter had originally been drawn up some years 
ago and had not been looked at since 2009. They noted that it should be reviewed every 
two years. It was out of date with a number of items in it that needed updating. Sue De 
Luca in conjunction with Councillor Jackman had glanced at the document and found a 
number of anomalies. Ms De Luca was happy to review the charter with Councillor 
Jackman and bring their finding to the next meeting. At the same time officers at EFDC 
could look at the Charter from the District Council’s perspective for anything that would 
need to be updated. 

Councillor Knapman would like to know what use the Charter was and what could be 
done with it. 

Ms De Luca said that they could look at everything done at this Local Liaison Committee 
and how things were done as a whole. 

Councillor Sartin agreed that the charter was very out of date and that a lot of work 
would be involved in updating it.  

Councillor Mohindra  asked if it could be recirculated to all the Parish and Town Clerks 
for their input and then put to the Constitution Working Group for their consideration. Mr 
Macnab replied that it was part of the constitution review taking place at present and any 
helpful comments from the Town and Parish Councils would be welcome. There needed 
to be a wider debate on how the Charter was to be used.

RESOLVED:

That: 
1) Ms. S De Luca and Councillor Jackman review the current charter from 

the Local Council’s perspective and report back to the next meeting of this 
Committee;

2) EFDC officers also review the Charter from their perspective and report 
back to the next meeting of this Committee; and



Local Councils' Liaison Committee Tuesday, 29 March 2016

4

3) The Charter also be circulated to all Parish and Town Council Clerks for 
any comments that they may have.

24. EPPING FOREST DISTRICT LOCAL PLAN - PROGRESS 

The meeting received a report updating them on the latest position on the Council’s 
Local Plan. The Council was working towards the next key consultation for the draft local 
plan that was scheduled for July to September 2016, for which the timescale was now 
not going to be possible for a variety of reasons explained in the report.

The Government had made it clear they would intervene where no local plan had been 
produced by early 2017, by arranging for a plan to be written in consultation with local 
people. The government were currently consulting (until 15 April 2016) on the criteria to 
inform their decision on whether to intervene to deliver this commitment. One of the 
penalties proposed for not having produced a plan, (it is not clear yet how this will be 
interpreted), was the loss of the New Homes Bonus. It was clear that the Council 
needed to make good progress this year and to have consulted on our Draft Plan 
Preferred Approach as soon as possible.  For this reason the focus of the Planning 
Policy Team was on the outstanding work needed in order to go out to consultation on 
the Draft Plan as soon as possible and for the moment they would not be able to give 
much resource to Neighbourhood Planning.  

Officers and Members continue to meet regularly with appropriate authorities, principally 
through the Cooperation for Sustainable Development Officer group and Member Board, 
to consider a wide range of cross boundary issues.   

Officers were also involved in transport work being undertaken by the London Borough 
of Enfield, having opposed reference to construction of a new access road in the North 
East Enfield Area Action Plan and were now keeping a watching brief on the wider 
transport work being undertaken as part of Enfield’s Northern Gateway Access Package 
(NGAP).  

Further Local Plan Member workshops would be held covering climate change, energy 
and flood risk and development management policies. A programme was being worked 
up for these sessions and once finalised Members would be advised of dates and 
arrangements accordingly. 

Work continued on finalising the evidence base reports which will be used to inform the 
policies included in the Draft Plan (Preferred Approach) that the Council consults on 
later this year.  

An updated Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) had been produced in 
conjunction with the other authorities within our Housing Market Area: East Herts, 
Harlow and Uttlesford.  What the SHMA provided us with was figures for Objectively 
Assessed Housing Need (OAHN) for Epping Forest District and the other three Districts 
named above. The OAHN figure in Epping Forest District was 11,300 dwellings up to 
2033 but it was important to understand that this was not the housing target for the 
District.  Work was underway with the other SHMA authorities to consider the options for 
the most appropriate spatial distribution of growth across the area.

An Economic Evidence report for West Essex and East Herts was commissioned jointly 
by EFDC and East Herts, Harlow and Uttlesford Councils. Local Plan Inspectors pay 
particular attention to the need for jobs and housing requirements to be aligned.  

Government guidance and emerging Inspectors’ reports made clear the need to 
undertake a comprehensive Green Belt Review of the entire District before the release 



Local Councils' Liaison Committee Tuesday, 29 March 2016

5

of any Green Belt land was considered.  It was important to remember that the outcome 
of the Green Belt Review was only one, albeit an extremely important, piece of the 
evidence base that would inform the Council's future plan-making decisions. 

It therefore followed that, simply because a parcel, or part of the parcel, was being 
appraised as part of the more detailed work, this did not necessarily mean that it should 
or would be allocated for development in the emerging Local Plan, or that the Council 
would look favourably on a planning application.    

To help inform the best way to meet the objectively assessed housing need for the 
Strategic Housing Market Area identified, further transport modelling work was being 
undertaken by Essex County Council. This would look at the implications for the 
transport network of growth and how it could be distributed across the Housing Market 
Area.

Delays have been encountered in the strategic transport assessment which has still not 
been signed off by Highways England. This was of concern because it could lead to a 
delay in completing the work to test the strategic options for growth in the SHMA area.  
A joint letter from the leaders of the four authorities to local MPs and relevant ministers 
was sent on 22 February 2016 seeking a dedicated resource at senior level within 
Highways England to assist with the work so that Local Plans were not further delayed.

Essex County Council was undertaking a Historic Environment Characterisation study of 
the District with a final report due in spring. Town and Parish councils were also to be 
asked for expressions of interest in participating in work leading to the establishment of 
a Green Infrastructure Framework for the District.

Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers had finalised their draft Plan and had submitted 
it to the Council. The plan had now been published and was currently being examined.  

Eight other Parish and Town Councils have applied to designate neighbourhood 
planning areas for their areas (Chigwell, Epping, Buckhurst Hill, Theydon Bois, 
Loughton, North Weald Bassett, Epping Upland and Waltham Abbey).  Many of these 
were now at early stages in scoping out and drafting their plans.

The Housing & Planning Bill containing more than 140 clauses was published in October 
2015 and was currently being scrutinised at committee stage in the House of Lords. It 
was anticipated that the Bill would receive Royal Assent and be enacted later this year 
and was then likely then to be quickly followed by secondary legislation in order to bring 
its provisions into force. Measures had been included to streamline the planning 
process; to facilitate starter homes, self builds and building on brownfield land.  It was 
proposed that more powers were given to the Secretary of State to take over plan 
making, decision taking and effectively impose financial penalties on local authorities 
with high-value vacant buildings.

Changes to the compulsory purchase regime are also included in the Bill and are aimed 
at making compulsory purchase "clearer, fairer and faster".

The Portfolio Holder for Planning Policy, Councillor Bassett thanked the Town and 
Parish Councils for attending the Member Local Plan workshops and encouraged 
continued presence at future ones once arranged. He noted that our district was at the 
heart of a perfect storm, with 92% greenbelt land surrounded by London Boroughs and 
with the government changing the rules regularly. We did not keep information secret 
and everything needed to be evidence based as it would not otherwise stand up under 
inspection. EFDC were not alone as many other authorities faced similar problems and 
a few that had rushed ahead had their plans overturned by inspectors at examination. 



Local Councils' Liaison Committee Tuesday, 29 March 2016

6

The Chairman wondered if the inspectors all worked to the same set of criteria. 
Councillor Bassett said that there were set rules but each inspector looked at it from 
their own perspective. The Planning Policy Manager added that they had the 
government framework set out in NPPF, Planning Acts and secondary legislation to 
work within and that decisions were made on soundness of the submitted plan. 
Examinations were Inspector led and inquisitorial; and that policies included within draft 
plans had to be evidence based; that said, Inspectors are of course individuals with their 
own views but ultimately much would depend on the robustness of the draft plan that 
was being examined.

The member from Ongar Town Council asked if the Neighbourhood Plans being 
developed still had to go to the residents for a referendum. He was told that following 
independent examination prior to being made (becoming part of the Local Plan) all 
neighbourhood plans had to be subject to the referendum process, and so this 
highlighted the need for and importance of early, effective and ongoing engagement and 
consultation as neighbourhood plans were being formulated. 

Councillor Mohindra asked if a Health Provision workshop was still intended to be held. 
Officers did not think so but undertook to find out and get back to Cllr Mohindra to 
confirm this.

Councillor Mohindra then asked that given we would not meet the target set,  if we 
should slow down and reduce the amount of money we spend to try and offset the new 
homes loss. Was this feasible? Councillor Bassett replied that provided the government 
could see we were making reasonable progress, then he did not think the government 
could ask for more from us. There were some fundamental steps that we just have to 
take. Also if we slowed down then the evidence we gathered would become out of date 
and we would then have to renew that evidence. It’s a balancing act; we had the budget 
in place, so it made sense to progress production of the plan as expeditiously as we 
were able to. It’s been a long drawn out process, a lot harder than anyone had 
expected. He did not think we would get anything by slowing it down to try and offset the 
new homes bonus. The nearer we were to achieving it the better for us. 

Councillor Whitehouse wanted to know when the outcome of the new homes bonus 
would be known and what penalty would be imposed on the council. Also, could officers 
expand a bit more on the form that the Local Plan consultation would take. The Planning 
Policy Manager said that he did not know the exact timing on the new homes bonus 
matter, but was expecting the end of this year, early next year.  As for the second point, 
active consideration was being given regarding the nature of the consultation and how 
best it might be taken forward. Underpinning, supporting and justifying the content of the 
consultation draft plan would be the various pieces of evidence that were being 
prepared – these too would be available for commenting on during the consultation 
period. Mr Macnab added that EFDC had recently taken on specialist resources to help 
with our communications plan and consultation strategy on the Local Plan to give out 
better information – part of this would include learning lessons from the 2012 Issues and 
Options by looking to make consultations simpler and easier to understand and respond 
to. 

Councillor Knapman noted that we were talking about autumn 2017, he was not quite 
sure what that date was referring to, just that we would be in trouble if we have not got 
this sorted out by then. He was not convinced that we could do all these things by early 
2017 and he was very concerned by the rate we were proceeding. Once we have done 
this and it all went wrong and the inspector threw it out, what was the timetable from that 
point? Do we start again (with no penalties), or does the government simply takes over? 
The Planning Policy Manager replied that they were looking to meet the late 2017 
deadline for submitting the Local Plan to the Planning Inspectorate but commented that, 



Local Councils' Liaison Committee Tuesday, 29 March 2016

7

the Government were looking at 60 plans from around the country and within these 
EFDC were in the bottom 15 in terms of age of current plan.  We were doing our best to 
do what we could in terms of moving forward as expeditiously as possible whilst 
ensuring that a robust plan was drafted that would withstand challenge at examination. 
He admitted that if we did not produce a plan in a timely manner to the government’s 
satisfaction there was a risk of intervention. At present intervention meant Government 
would take over completely and effectively do the local authorities role in drafting and 
progressing the Local Plan. This was very unlikely to happen since through the Housing 
and Planning Bill the government was looking to take over selective aspects of work on 
a local plan, but government simply did not have the necessary resources or expertise 
to do everything on local plans.

Councillor Knapman then asked how confident were officers that they had the right 
amount of resources and staff. Mr Macnab said that we had the resources, but the 
difficulty was in keeping the staff as we were flanked by London Boroughs who were 
more attractive to our staff. But he was confident we would meet our targets. Councillor 
Bassett added that we were working with the CLG very closely and listening to what 
they and the other authorities and barristers were saying in our area. None of them have 
said that we were doing things wrong. It just takes time to do it correctly because of the 
nature of the district and the immense amount of duty to cooperate work needed for this 
area. He speculated that it could be that when we went to inspection they may say we 
were doing well overall but it may be that they would like us to revisit a small part of the 
plan. Some of what we have done relied upon the cooperation of ‘Highways England’ 
and we have been waiting for them to approve a transport model for about two years in 
order to then undertake our transport assessments as part of the local plan evidence. 
He noted that Highways England was a government agency and part of the cause of the 
delays.  

Councillor Knapman noted that we now have 9 parishes doing neighbourhood plans 
without having a clue what number of houses they are going to be asked to take on 
board. He asked whether some idea could be given of when parishes might expect to 
know what sort of numbers they would be taking on, as at present they were working in 
the dark; making up numbers they think the district would want and the district making 
up numbers that they think the government would want. Councillor Bassett said that they 
were being kept in the picture and had invited towns and parishes to workshops as they 
had gone along. Councillor Bassett and officers went onto explain that with regard to 
exact numbers, we had been working more at the strategic level across the SHMA area 
and looking at this with the other neighbouring authorities in mind for what they could 
take or want to take. Until the evidence base documents had been completed and then 
the discussions with neighbouring authorities, EFDC was not in a position to know what 
the housing target number for the district would be. The difficulties faced by town and 
parishes seeking to process their neighbourhood plans was recognised but the position 
would not become clear until the EFDC draft local plan was published for consultation 
later this year.

Councillor Surtees said he was now beginning to see this as a national plan delivered 
locally because of all the constraints that were being put on the people working to 
deliver it. Towns and Parishes need to have that understanding, that this wasn’t 
something that Epping was producing for Epping people in a vacuum, but something 
that Epping was producing under strict guidelines, that tended to change and get tighter 
as they went along.  He did have concerns about the consultation of the draft local plan, 
firstly about accessibility for disabled people or persons with special educational needs, 
they needed to be taken into consideration. Not just Town and Parish councils but other 
stakeholders in the community would need a clear steer. He added that it would be 
helpful for someone to say a bit more about the subsidiarity of the Neighbourhood Plans 
to the Local Plan. The Planning Policy Manager agreed that it was important that the 



Local Councils' Liaison Committee Tuesday, 29 March 2016

8

Local Plan consultation was made as inclusive as possible and that we get views from 
as wide a range of interests/people as possible. He acknowledged that there was a 
danger that planning reports could be full of jargon and technical words but it should be 
made clear and accessible to as many people as possible. As for subsidiarity to the 
Local Plan, neighbourhood plans when brought into force become part of the 
development plan for the area. He explained that they could be developed before or at 
the same time as a local planning authority was producing its Local Plan. A draft 
neighbourhood plan must be in general conformity with the strategic policies of the 
development plan in force.

Where a neighbourhood plan was brought forward before an up-to-date Local Plan was 
in place the Parish/Town councils and the local planning authority should discuss and 
aim to agree the relationship between policies in:

 the emerging neighbourhood plan,
 the emerging Local Plan, and
 the adopted development plan,

with appropriate regard to national policy and guidance.

The Planning Policy Manager thought it important that a proactive and positive approach 
was taken particularly sharing evidence and where possible seeking to resolve issues to 
ensure the draft neighbourhood plan had the greatest chance of success at independent 
examination.

 Once made, (adopted) Neighbourhood Plan policies would have the same status and 
weight as other development plan policies and where relevant equally able to be taken 
into account when determining applications, but over time they would have to be 
reviewed. In the event of a prima facie conflict between what is said in a local plan and 
what is said in a neighbourhood plan it would be the most recent plan to be adopted that 
was likely to take precedent.  That was why such close liaison between Parish/Town 
and District level was important, as it was in no ones interest to have different or 
conflicting views in plans. Councillor Surtees replied that they were told some years ago 
the Neighbourhood Plans could not trump the Local Plan especially in cases of housing 
allocations etc. was there any change to that? He was told that there were certain things 
that a Neighbourhood Plan can and can’t do, examples given of matters that a 
neighbourhood plan cannot do were seeking to redraw the Green Belt boundary or set a 
housing number, although they can say where and the type of housing that can be 
developed. It must work within the framework. Mr Macnab added that they should wait 
for the evidence produced by the district rather than developing their own evidence 
base.

The Chairman at that stage brought the debate to a close as it had been given a good 
airing. She thanked the Planning Policy Manager for his detailed presentation.

25. GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE FRAMEWORK FOR EPPING FOREST DISTRICT 

The Principal Landscape Officer informed the meeting of an offer to engage with Town 
and Parishes in a series of workshop events to acquire an evidence base to provide a 
framework for various useful documents and projects. A green infrastructure, meaning 
trees and other kinds of habitat where they provided benefits such as water meadows, 
stream sides, green roofs or urban drainage systems done in a green manor and not 
using formal hard engineering. Green Infrastructure was the latest word for all these 
things. Why framework? It would provide evidence for the Local Plan and help the 
council with a green infrastructure strategy and how it interacted with Country Care. Our 
tree strategy was now out of date and the evidence base we could get from this would 
prove extremely useful. And it would also help local councils produce their 
Neighbourhood Plans. He also hoped there could be a web based consultation and not 



Local Councils' Liaison Committee Tuesday, 29 March 2016

9

just workshops. They would like to start this by mid summer and a letter will be going out 
to the Chairmen of the Town and Parish Councils inviting expressions of interest. He 
has funding for up to 10 events that should cover the district quite well and still be locally 
based. 

Councillor Knapman asked how confident was he that there would be something in 
place to go into our local plan due to the tight timetable we have. He was told that it 
could be done in the timescale. They would be using this consultation and also the 
existing evidence base. So they were not without an evidence base, but the longer they 
did this the stronger it would get.

26. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

Councillor Knapman asked that the Chairman attend the Local Highways Panel (LHP) 
as an observer and contributor. He would send her dates of the Panels with an open 
invitation to attend. He also noted that the LHP have had their budgets cut in half and 
that would affect what they could do. The District Council have added £50,000 which 
was matched by Essex County Council, so they now have £100,000. But, the LHP was 
still about £200,000 short of what they had this time last year. He noted that they had 
spent all their money for 2016/17 by now but he would let parishes know what had been 
agreed.

27. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

The dates of the future meetings were noted and there may well be extra meetings 
added just to consider the Local Plan. 

CHAIRMAN





Report to Local Council’s Liaison 
Committee

Date of meeting: 4 July 2016

Subject: Civil Emergency Plans Review Workshop

Officer contact for further information: Peter Charman (01992 56 4176)

Democratic Services: M Jenkins (01992 56 4607)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

That Local Councils;

 Choose a mutually suitable date and time to attend a brief workshop about Civil 
Emergency plans

 Send a Parish/Town Council Clerk (or appropriate substitute) to the 
aforementioned workshop

Report:

It is a requirement of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 that District Councils maintain Civil 
Emergency Plans and share information about such plans with partners.

Following changes to the way emergency planning is undertaken across the County and 
nationally, it is considered a good time to review the existing emergency plans and the roles 
that local councils have in them.

At the March meeting of the EALC (Epping), it was agreed that the District Emergency 
Planning Officer prepare a brief workshop for Parish and Town Council Clerks (or appropriate 
substitutes) to review;

 Existing relevant emergency plans at District/County/National level
 Civil emergency risks across the District
 Community Resilience

It is proposed that this workshop take place either the week beginning 26th September 2016 
or the 3rd October 2016. Therefore Councillors and Clerks are asked to identify a suitable 
date, time and location during that period. If needs be, the workshop can be repeated at 
different locations and/or times to suit. The workshop is unlikely to take longer than two 
hours.





Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

DISTRICT COUNCIL AND

LOCAL COUNCIL

CHARTER



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

CONTENTS

Page No

Introduction U24

The Charter U25

Sections:

Environmental Health (Appendix 1) U27

Engineering Services (Appendix 2) U30

Housing Services (Appendix 3) U31

Highways (Appendix 4) U33

Leisure Services (Appendix 5) U36

Planning Services (Appendix 6) U39

Research & Democratic                           
Services (Appendix 7) U55

Anti Social Behaviour (Appendix 8) U59

Surplus Land and Property (Appendix 9) U61

Waste Management (Appendix 10) U64

Quality Parish Councils (Appendix 11) U65

Definition of Executive 
Portfolios (Appendix 12) U66

EFDC Organisation 
Structure (Appendix 13) U69



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

INTRODUCTION

1. Since the inception of the Epping Forest District in 1974, the District Council and the 
parish and town councils have come together to discuss matters of mutual interest 
and concern.  This body, the Local Councils' Liaison Committee, comprises 
representatives from all parish and town councils and Members of Essex County 
Council and the District Council.

2. Secretariat services are provided by the District Council.  Agenda preparation is 
undertaken by Research and the Democratic Services Section of the District Council 
in conjunction with Co-ordinator for Local Councils.

3. The consultation and information exchange achieved through the Committee has 
tended to be limited to matters of general concern and interest, leaving parish 
specific matters to be taken up direct with the Council concerned.

4. In addition, the District Council formally consults the local councils upon those 
matters where the local council is entitled to formal consultation.

5. In December 1993, following publication of the first series of reports by the Local 
Government Commission, the District Council, noting the views of the Commission, 
decided to pursue the concept of a Charter for parish and town councils.  The District 
and Local Councils review the Charter jointly at approximately two yearly intervals.

6. This is the fifth sixth version of the Charter.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

1. EPPING FOREST DISTRICT - CHARTER BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND LOCAL 
COUNCILS

1. Introduction

1.1 This Local Charter has been drawn up jointly between Epping Forest District Council 
and the Town and Parish Councils within the District.  The Charter emphasises the 
importance attached by these bodies to working in partnership in the provision of 
services to the public.  It is also designed to enhance and enrich communications 
between these bodies so as to assist the exchange of information, the expression of 
views and the making of representations.

2. General Principles and Expectations

2.1 The District Council acknowledges the right of local councils to a clear statement of 
the matters affecting their local communities upon which they will be consulted.  The 
list of matters will be widely drawn and will acknowledge the statutory rights of Parish 
and Town Councils to be part of the statutory consultation in relation to the 
Community Strategy, the Council Corporate Plan, the Best Value Performance Plan 
and other similar statutory processes.

2.2 The District Council will provide sufficient information about matters upon which the 
views of local councils are sought.

2.3 Except where more specific arrangements apply (e.g. within the Planning Code of 
Practice) the District Council will, when requested, provide a written explanation to a 
local council in cases where the District Council decides not to agree with the views 
of the local council and will advise local councils when such a disagreement is likely, 
with the reasons for the disagreement, so that the local councils further comments 
can be submitted before the matter is discussed.

2.4 The District Council will facilitate regular meetings between representatives of the 
bodies to discuss matters of common interest.

2.5 Local councils will invite appropriate district ward councillors to their meetings on a 
regular basis and will provide agendas and minutes of their meetings.

2.6 Local councils will assist the District Council and local district ward councillors in 
keeping them informed about local opinion and views upon matters affecting their 
areas generally and upon specific issues.

2.7 Local councils will arrange the dissemination of information within their areas to 
ensure the reasonable spread of knowledge and the reasonable opportunity for the 
general public to participate in the decision-making process.

2.8 In order to allow proper consideration of views and comments, local councils will 
respond in writing to invitations to comment within time periods specified, wherever 
reasonably practicable.

3. Commitment to Liaison

3.1 Where relevant and known, the views of the local council will be represented at 
Council, Cabinet, or Cabinet Committee meetings by either a local ward councillor, 
the Chairman of the Committee or a senior officer if not already received as a written 

Comment [ST1]:  No longer any 
requirement to produce a BVPP



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

report.  Where any matter is under consideration by a member of the Cabinet on an 
individual basis, he or she will consult local ward councillors.

4. Basic Information

4.1 The District Council will supply to local councils at the appropriate times the following 
basic reference documents:

Annual Report
Community Strategy
Best Value Performance Plan (BVPP)
Council Corporate Plan
District Council Year Book and Calendar of Meetings
Agenda and Minutes of the Council, Cabinet Committees, plus other committees and 
Sub-Committees
Press Releases
Annual Budget (Capital and Revenue Spending)
Internal Telephone Directory (2 copies)

4.2 Subject to availability, the District Council will upon request, provide speakers on any 
of its services or aspect of particular services for local council meetings.

4.3 Key officer contacts will be supplied via the District Council's internal telephone 
directory supplied to each local council.  The District Council has nominated, the 
Chief Executive as its central point of contact on strategic or policy issues.  In his 
absence or in connection with more routine matters, his assistant Shirley Hawkins 
the Assiatant Director (Governance and Performance Management) will deal with 
inquiries from parish Councils.

5. Service Specific Information

5.1 The following sections of this Charter are a series of Codes setting out the 
procedures in relation to specific services.  These Codes are in addition to and not in 
substitution to the arrangements for the supply of basic information.

6. Review of Charter

6.1 Both the District Council and Parish and Town Councils have undertaken to review 
the Charter on a regular basis and to issue factual revisions at six monthly intervals.

Signed: Ann Haigh

CHAIRMAN OF LOCAL COUNCILS' LIAISON COMMITTEE

Date:

Signed: Jason Salter

VICE-CHAIRMAN OF LOCAL COUNCILS' LIAISON COMMITTEE

Date:

Comment [ST2]:  No longer produced

Comment [ST3]:  No longer produced

Comment [ST4]:  No longer produced 
in hard-copy

Comment [ST5]:  No longer produced 
in hard-copy



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 1

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of the charter is to enhance consultation and communication between 
the District and local councils in the area of environmental health, thereby improving 
its quality and accountability.

1.2 The major work areas covered are:

(a) Licensing;
(b) Animal Welfare;
(c) Health and Safety at Work;
(d) Food Safety;
(e) Pest Control;
(f) Pollution Control; and
(g) Private Sector Housing.

2. General Liaison

2.1 District Council members and officers with relevant responsibilities undertakes to 
attend the Local Councils' Liaison Committee when appropriate.  District Council 
members and officers will also meet with representatives of local councils to discuss 
areas of concern.  Local councils will respond in a similar manner to requests from 
the District Council.

3. Licensing

3.1 Under the Licensing Act 2003 local councils are not listed as responsible authorities 
and therefore cannot be consulted directly. However, all applications are required to be 
advertised at the premises concerned and in a newspaper circulating in the vicinity of the 
premises.

3.2 The Act identifies two groups who are entitled to make representations with regard to 
an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate.

(a) Interested parties

3.3 These are bodies or individuals who are entitled to make representations to licensing 
authorities on applications for the grant, variation or review of premises licences. This group 
includes:

 a person living in the vicinity of the premises in question;
 a body representing persons living in that vicinity;
 a person involved in a business in the vicinity of the premises in question;
 a body representing persons involved in such businesses.

3.4 Any of these individuals or groups may specifically request a representative to make 
representation’s their behalf. For example, a legal representative, a friend, a Member of 
Parliament or a County, local District, Town or Parish councillor could all act in such a 
capacity. It is expected that “persons involved in a business” will be given its widest possible 



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

interpretation. It is also expected that the expression can be held to embrace the functions of 
charities, churches and medical practices.

(b) Responsible authorities

3.5 These are public bodies that must be fully notified of applications and that are entitled 
to make representations to the licensing authority in relation to the application these are:

 the chief officer of police;
 the local fire authority;
 the local enforcement agency for the Health and Safety

at Work etc. Act 1974 ;
 the local authority responsible for preventing the risk of pollution of the environment 

or of harm to human health;
 the local planning authority;
 any body that represents those who are responsible for the protection of children 

from harm;
 any licensing authority, other than the relevant licensing authority, in whose area part 

of the premises are situated.

3.6 The Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport may prescribe other responsible 
authorities by means of regulations, however, to date none have been so prescribed.

3.7 The Local Authorities Co-ordinators on Regulatory Services (LACORS) have issued 
the following statement in response to questions relating to the status of Town and Parish 
Councils:

“there is no requirement on the licensing authority to keep the Town/Parish Council 
appraised of all applications/hearings. The Government quite clearly defined certain 
bodies as being Responsible Authorities and this does not include the Town/Parish 
Council”.

If the licensing authority exceeds its powers in relation to the statutory consultation 
requirements it may provide grounds for appeal against any subsequent decision it makes. It 
would also be liable to judicial review for acting beyond its powers.

3.8 Local councils will be supplied by the District Council with the procedure for its 
Licensing Sub-committee.   

4. Animal Welfare

4.1 Local councils will be fully consulted about any proposals to designate land for the 
purpose of dog control.  Where local councils wish to implement byelaws, the District Council 
will provide advice and guidance.

4.2 Where District Council byelaws and designation orders are in place the Council's 
Animal Welfare Officers (AWOs) will enforce them.  Where local councils have introduced 
such byelaws the AWOs will endeavour to assist in enforcement but it must be recognised 
by local councils that resources are limited and that the District's primary responsibility is 
towards its own byelaw and land designation enforcement.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

5. Other Issues

5.1 In responding to any County or National consultation exercise on environmental 
issues, local councils will be invited to respond directly or to input into any District Council 
response.

5.2 The Environmental Health Group will respond positively to any request for 
information, or for the investigation of any issue raised by local councils, and undertakes to 
report back with the findings of such investigations.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 2
ENGINEERING SERVICES

1. Land Drainage

1.1 The Land Drainage section within the Environmental Services has responsibility for 
management of district flood defence assets, identifying areas of flood risk pursuing 
schemes for flood alleviation, administration of land drainage byelaws, precautionary 
planning/development to manage flood risk, enforcement action under the 1991 and 
1994 Land Drainage Acts and byelaws, management and enforcement of the 
District’s watercourses/drainage systems (Third Party) and Emergency planning for 
flooding.

1.2 The Section manages watercourses for which the Council is responsible by acting for 
Leisure and Housing Services where they are riparian owners.  Equally important to 
an efficient system of drainage is the management and maintenance of the District’s 
system of ditches and watercourses which are the responsibility of other riparian 
owners.  This means regular inspection of the District’s critical watercourses to 
ensure they are free running, not suffering from encroachment or from illegal tipping, 
blocking or other activities, which could restrict the flow of water, identifying where 
maintenance, rehabilitation or new works are required to ensure a satisfactory 
system of drainage. Where such works are the responsibility of a Local Council, by 
way of riparian ownership, they are informed by the Land Drainage section and given 
advice on the type and nature of works. Where the Parish Councils have concerns or 
wish to report blocked ditches then they can get in touch with the Land Drainage 
Section. 

1.3 The Section provides technical advice to Planning Services in respect of any 
development within a catchment where a flood risk can exist. The Council’s Local 
Plan now has specific reference to the Flood Risk Assessment Zones and the 
requirements of Flood Risk Assessments. The measures implemented through the 
system of planning controls and land drainage consents are increasingly being aimed 
at minimising surface run-off (through attenuation and sustainable drainage systems 
– SUDS) rather than just maintaining the efficiency of the existing system.  Further 
detail can be obtained from officers of the Land Drainage Section. 

1.4 Land Drainage section besides managing the Flood Alleviation Schemes and their 
associated assets also provides support to the Council’s emergency response team 
in events of flooding emergencies, who maintain contacts with all Parish/Town 
Councils but predominantly those who have historically suffered from major flooding 
e.g. Nazeing Parish and Waltham Abbey Town Councils.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 3

HOUSING SERVICES

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of the Code is to enhance consultation and communication between the 
District and local councils in the area of social housing, thereby improving its quality 
and accountability.

1.2 For the purpose of this code, "Social Housing" shall be defined as housing provided 
and/or managed by the District Council or a Housing Association registered with the 
Housing Corporation.

2. General Liaison

2.1 The Housing Portfolio Holder and Head of Housing Services will attend the Local 
Council’s’ Liaison Committee as and where appropriate. 

2.2 The Housing Portfolio Holder and District Council officers will meet local councils on 
request to discuss aspects of Social Housing provision and management.  Local 
councils will respond in a similar manner to requests from the District Council.

2.3 Any Local Council views will be put forward at Cabinet meetings by the Housing 
Portfolio Holder.  If the matter concerned is one where the Portfolio Holder may act 
alone, any views from local councils will be reported to that member by the Head of 
Housing Services.

3. Specific Commitments

3.1 The District Council will undertake to consult with and invite comments/input from 
local councils as part of the regular process of updating and developing the 
District Council's Housing Strategy.

3.2 The District Council will invite local councils to comment annually on proposed 
changes to the Housing Allocations Scheme.  The comments of local councils will 
then be made known to the appropriate District Council member body, so that they 
may be taken into account in the annual review.

3.3 Local councils will bring to the attention of the District Council's Head of Housing 
Services any land within their area that they consider would be suitable for an 
affordable housing development, that has not already been allocated within the 
District Local Plan or Local Development Documents.

3.4 In the event of proposals by a developer or housing association to build social 
housing in association with the District Council, the District Council undertakes to 
keep appraised those local councils covering areas affected by the scheme.

3.5 In order to keep local councils up to date with social housing matters, the 
District Council will provide local councils with copies of the following items produced 
for tenants:

(a) Housing News (three times per year)
(b) The Tenants Handbook and subsequent up-dated versions
(c) Any other publicity information sent to tenants



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 4

HIGHWAYS

1. Purpose

1.1 This part of the Charter is designed to clarify responsibilities for highway and traffic 
matters following the decision of Essex County Council to terminate the Highways 
Agency, which previously allowed the District Council to act as its agents.

1.2 The District Council’s remaining powers/responsibilities are as follows:

Parking (Off-street, on-street (as agent of Essex County Council) and Residential 
Parking Schemes and enforcement)

Some Bus Shelters and Street Names (as part of town centre regeneration and 
enhancement schemes and where local contractual arrangements exist)

Footpath and Bridleways (only as part of voluntary work undertaken on behalf of 
EFDC by Countrycare) 

1.3 The District Council has a consultation agreement (The Local Service Agreement) 
with the County on highway matters.  Where appropriate, the District will consult with 
Local Councils on relevant highway matters.

2. General Liaison

2.1 Parish councils are free to contact their local District Councillors to enlist their support 
for any problems they are raising or representations being submitted. The District 
Council also undertakes to pursue issues of national significance with the 
Government via local MP's or Local Government Association without detracting from 
the direct responsibility of Essex County Council for these matters.

3. Highway Maintenance

3.1 Requests by local councils for specific highway maintenance and improvement 
information should be forwarded by the Parish or Town Council concerned to the 
Highways Department of the County Council (contact details in Appendix 1).

3.2 Following notification from the County, the District Council will provide Parish Clerks 
with details of proposed highways schemes via the EFDC Member’s Bulletin.

3.3 Local Councils can obtain details of proposed works via the Highways Hotline.  If 
local councils wish to raise specific problems they can do so via the hotline number 
(0845 603 7631) or via email to highways.helpline@essexcc.gov.uk. 

4. Rights of Way

4.1 Matters relating to public rights of way are the responsibility of Essex County Council 
whose duties are to maintain public rights of way including maintaining the surface, 
preventing stopping up and obstruction, ensuring farmers restore paths over 
cultivated land, maintaining a definitive map and signposting.

mailto:highways.helpline@essexcc.gov.uk


Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

4.2 Local councils are also empowered to maintain footpaths and bridleways.  They can 
take action to remove obstructions or require the highway authority to take any 
necessary action.  

4.3 Local councils are encouraged to establish processes whereby problems can be 
identified and brought to the attention of Essex County Council Highways staff.  

5. Off-Street Parking and Residential Parking Schemes

5.1 The District Council is responsible for off street car parks and on and off-street 
enforcement of parking restrictions, including parking fees, enforcement, 
maintenance and management and relevant statutory procedures.  Enforcement of 
on and off-street car parking is contracted out to named contractor available from the 
District Council.

5.2 The District Council, from time to time, undertakes parking reviews, which includes  
carrying out consultation. Local Parish and Town Councils will be consultees when 
such reviews are undertaken.

5.3 The Parking Management section of Environmental Services is located at The 
Parking Office, Burton Road Depot, Burton Road, Loughton, IG10 3QS (Telephone 
number 01992 564000).  



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

Highways Annex 1

1. Essex County Council is exclusively responsible for the following areas as the 
Highways Authority:

 Footpaths and Bridleways
 Highways and Highways Maintenance (excluding Motorways)
 Traffic Management
 Parking, on street (the District Council operates the enforcement on behalf of the 

county)
 Road Safety
 Highway (& Footway) Lighting
 Street Furniture on Highway Land
 Highways covering estates and non-classified and non-trunk routes
 Footway Lighting
 Footpath and Bridleways (Creation, Diversion and Extinguishment)
 Speed Reduction
 Accident Reduction Schemes
 Street Lighting
 Highway Works

2.        Parish councils should obtain information, report highway problems and make 
representations direct to Essex County Council in the following ways:

(a)  On operational matters to the Area highways office at:
 West Area Office, Warwick House, Roydon Road, Harlow, Essex CM19 5DX 
(Tel. 0845 603 7621)  (email:  highways.westarea@essexcc.gov.uk  or to their local County 
Councillor.

(b)  On policy matters to the area Highways office (details as above) or to their local County 
Councillor, the County Council Portfolio Holder or the County Head of Highways (based at 
County Hall, Chelmsford).

mailto:highways.westarea@essexcc.gov.uk


Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 5

LEISURE SERVICES

1. Purpose

1.1 Leisure Services is responsible for the provision of a wide range of cultural and 
leisure opportunities designed to assist people of all ages and abilities to live a 
healthy and active life. This is achieved through the management and direct provision 
of specialist facilities and targeted activity programmes, by supporting local 
community initiatives and by developing partnerships with other statutory, voluntary, 
public and commercial agencies.

1.2 The purpose of this code is to secure the best possible delivery of leisure services by 
ensuring effective communication with local councils in respect of both localised and 
district-wide leisure issues.

1.3 It should be noted that the District Council has no statutory duty to provide leisure 
facilities or activities and the level, nature and range of provision may therefore be 
subject to variation.

2. General Liaison

2.1 District Council members and officers with responsibility for leisure will attend the 
Local Councils' Liaison Committee meetings and individual town/parish council 
meetings as and when appropriate.

2.2 District Council members and officers will meet local councils on request to discuss 
aspects of leisure which are of mutual interest and concern.  The local councils will 
respond in a similar manner to requests from the District Council.

3. Specific Commitments

3.1 The District Council will consult with local councils in respect of the long term 
strategic planning for leisure, and any major events that will have a significant impact 
on a particular geographical community.

3.2 The District Council and local councils will inform each other of forthcoming leisure 
activities and opportunities relevant to particular communities whether these form a 
regular or occasional part of the programme.

3.3 The development of partnerships will be encouraged to enable the best possible 
service delivery at local level.  Such partnerships may embrace facility provision and 
usage, activity programmes, funding arrangements, marketing of leisure 
opportunities, and market research into the leisure needs of specific geographical 
communities.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

Annex 1

Trees in Epping Forest District: Contact List

Tree Location

Potentially dangerous trees immediately by 
the highway:

During normal hours
Out of office hours

Potentially dangerous trees on private land 
adjacent to the highway: 

General enquiries: Trees on Epping Forest 
District Council land:

Trees on open spaces that are the 
responsibility of The Corporation of London 
and trees within the Forest Land:

Trees in Local Nature Reserves:

Trees on Town/Parish Council maintained 
greens and Town/Parish Council open 
spaces:

Tree Preservation Orders;
Conservation Areas (trees);
Dangerous trees on private land (not 
adjacent to highway)
High hedges, countryside hedges, trees on 
development sites, community tree 
strategies – all: 

Trees included in conservation projects, 
volunteering, tree wardens:

Trees protected by Essex County Council 
Tree Preservation Orders:

Person/contact details responsible

EFDC, Leisure Contracts
01992 564562
01992 564000

Essex County Council, Area Highways
01279 624500

EFDC, Leisure Contracts
01992 564562

The Corporation of London:
The Warren, Loughton
010 8532 1010

Epping, Leisure Contracts 
01992 564562

Contact your relevant Town or Parish 
Council

Epping Forest District Council
Planning Services
01992 564120

Epping Forest Countrycare
01992 788203

Essex County Council
01245 436352



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

Annex 1

USEFUL CONTACT NUMBERS

PLANNING SERVICES, EFDC

(a) Trees in Relation to New Developments, Parish Tree Strategies, Tree Warden 
Scheme, Tree Preservation Orders, Trees in Conservation Areas, Tree Advisory 
Service (garden trees)
Landscape Team  Tel. 01992 564120

High Hedges    Tel. 01992 564117

(b) Local Plan Queries
Planning Services Landscape Officer Tel:01992 564117

COUNTRYCARE
(c) Sources of Grant Aid, Free Tree Scheme, Countryside Planting Projects, 

Guided Walks, Talks and Demonstrations, Tree Advisory Service (Countryside sites), 
Tree Warden Scheme, Free Tree Scheme
Countrycare   Tel. 01992 788203

(d) Animated Walks and Celebratory Tree Events
Arts Officer Tel. 01992 564552

Countrycare Manager Tel. 01992 788203

LEISURE SERVICES, EFDC
(e) Council-Owned Trees (General Enquiries), Tree Donation Scheme

Tel. 01992 564562

(f) Epping Forest Conservators (Epping Forest)
Tel: 0208 532 1010



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 6
PLANNING SERVICES

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of the Code is to enhance communication between the District and local 
councils and thereby mutual understanding and support.  The statutory 
responsibilities of the District Council and local councils knowledge and sensitivity to 
planning decisions affecting local communities are acknowledged.

1.2 The constraints inevitably imposed by planning regulations, resource availability, the 
requirements of other customers of the planning system and performance targets 
(e.g. Citizen's Charter) must be taken into account.  Perhaps the key target is dealing 
with the vast majority of planning applications within eight weeks of receipt.  Other 
codes of practice will explain these targets in more detail.

1.3 The District Council's Codes of Good Practice relating to Development Control and 
the Enforcement of Planning Control, designed to set out procedures for the public, 
are attached as annexes to this Code.

1.4 The provisions of this Code of Practice set out the undertakings given by the District 
Council and Local Councils regarding planning matters.  As to how those 
undertakings should function in practice, this Code should be read in conjunction with 
the District Council's planning protocol. Although the protocol is mandatory to the 
District Council and Councillors, the Town and Parish Councillors should follow it as 
good practice.

2. General Liaison

2.1 District Council members and officers with planning responsibilities will attend the 
Local Councils' Liaison Committee, including a senior officer with special 
responsibility for liaison with local councils.

2.2 District Council members or officers will meet local councils on request to discuss 
major and significant planning issues.  Local councils to respond in a like manner to 
requests from the District Council.

2.3 The calendar for District Council, meetings and agenda & minutes for those meetings 
will be sent to local councils, together with agenda background papers on request.  
Agenda are despatched on the Tuesday or Friday of the week preceding a 
committee, at the same time as they are despatched to District Councillors.

2.4 Local council views can be put forward at Area Plans Sub-Committees and District 
Development Control Committee meetings by local council representatives in 
addition to ward councillors, or the relevant senior officer, plus views that may 
already be reflected in a written report.

2.5 The District Council will take up agreed issues of national significance with the 
Government via local MPs or the Local Government Association.

2.6 Local councils may attend any of the planning seminars or open days held by the 
District Council. Planning regulations are always changing and it would be good 
practice if the Chairmen of the Town and Parish Planning Committees should attend 
the training courses. These courses are also open to all Town and Parish members 
and should be taken advantage off by all councillors and clerks. The Town and 



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

Parish clerks may wish to obtain more in depth training to enable them to advise their 
members. Local Council members and clerks are reminded that they can attend the 
Area Plans Sub-committees as observers to get a ‘feel’ for the type of information 
that they are looking for and how planning decisions are arrived at.

2.7 The District Council undertakes to consult all parish and town councils on Service 
Reviews carried out in respect of any planning function.

3. Development Control

3.1 Local councils will be consulted weekly about planning applications in their areas 
(and subsequent amendments thereto) and applications in an adjoining parish or 
district, which affect them.  Copies of other applications to be supplied on request or 
may also be obtained from the District Council’s website.

3.2 Local councils will be sent a weekly list of planning applications, with the case officer 
identified by initials and target response date.  The weekly list to include 
advertisement/conservation area/listed building applications, works to protected trees 
and certificates of lawful development.

3.3 Local councils will be sent copies of Adopted Local Plans/Supplementary Planning 
Guidance and given advice about planning considerations and "reasonableness" of 
decisions.  The local councils are encouraged to liaise with the case officer about 
planning policies, history etc and the likely determination date.  (N.B.:  The District 
Council aims to deal with 80% of householder applications within 8 weeks, although 
complex applications can take much longer).

3.4 Local councils will be advised on request by the case officer of publicity/consultations 
undertaken in accordance with the District Council Code of Practice.  It is open to 
local councils to undertake further local publicity or consultations, having regard to 
the prospective determinate date and following liaison with the case officer.

3.5 Local councils will respond in writing within the timetable on each weekly list (or 
otherwise agreed with case officer) in the form of:

(i) objection with valid planning reasons;

(ii) no comment/no objection (neutral);

(iii) support with valid planning reasons;  and

(iv) identification of local issues relevant to the planning decision, but without 
necessarily offering a definite view one way or another.

3.6 If responses are specifically anticipated, late comments will be sought by the case 
officer (and reported orally to the Committee if necessary).  Local councils will make 
known names of contacts for planning matters and their responsibilities.

3.7 Local council representatives can discuss differences of view with the case officer or 
a senior officer in Development Control in the run up to determination of an 
application.  They may then brief District ward councillor(s) or use the public 
speaking arrangements, which enable Parish and Town Councils to make direct 
representations at meetings of Area Plans Sub-Committees.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

3.8 Local councils' views are reported in summary on Area Plans Sub-Committee agenda 
and on case sheets where decisions are taken under delegated authority. It should 
be noted that Town and Parish Councils are not just restricted to commenting on an 
application on technical terms but can include their local knowledge as background to 
their comments. Where there is a difference of view, an application will be reported to 
Area Plans Sub-Committee.  Where the local council suggests refusal of an 
application, and officers also have reasons for refusal (whether or not they are the 
same as the local councils) then such a case will be refused under delegated powers 
unless referred for determination by an Area Plans Sub-Committee.

3.9 Applications for Certificates of Lawful Development (CLD) are matters that are 
decided upon in accordance with facts and not opinions.  There are two types of CLD 
applications: one for proposed development and the other for existing development, 
and these will be distinguished on the Weekly Lists. 

(a) Those for proposed developments (i.e. confirming whether planning 
permission is or is not required) will be included on the Weekly List but need be 
‘noted’ only by local councils as their determination is a matter of applying planning 
law; and

(b) those for existing developments (i.e. confirming whether an existing use or 
building is exempt from enforcement action) will also be included on the Weekly List 
and local councils are encouraged to comment upon the facts of the matter.  On 
particular cases, the case officer will contact the local council with specific queries 
about the applicant’s submissions.  
 In every case, determination of these applications is made under delegated powers 
since they are by consideration of facts and not opinion.

3.10 Local councils are encouraged to liaise with the case officer about the outcome of a 
decision and how local council views were taken into account.

3.11 Adjoining Planning Authorities consulting the District Council have the details placed 
at the rear of the weekly list, although some, but not all directly notify affected Local 
Councils. Local Councils can request that the District Council actively supports their 
comments on such an application so long as the request is made early in the process 
and if in agreement with their case.  Local council views will be reported in cases 
brought formally to District
Council members.  Further information of development control is set out in Annex 1.

3.12 Local councils will advise the District Council of suspected breaches of planning 
control.  The District Council to respond in accordance with the Enforcement Code of 
Practice.  (Annex 2). District Council now have an email address where Local 
Councils can report any infringements. 
The address is: developmentcontrol@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

3.13 The District Council to supply copies of enforcement notices on request.

3.14 The District Council to notify local councils of appeals lodged and, on request, 
prospective timetable of events. It should be noted that Local Councils have the right 
to attend appeal hearings and make written representations to those meetings.

3.15 Local councils will liaise with the case officer to provide local information or mutually 
supportive statements where appropriate.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

3.16 If local councils wish to have copies of appeal decisions then there is a longstanding 
procedure where they need to ask the Planning Inspectorate for a copy.  If this 
procedure does not work or the appeal is an historic one then the District Council will 
supply a copy on request and the District Council will notify local councils of all 
appeal decisions in its area in the weekly list.

3.17 Development Control contact officers for parishes or groups of parishes may be 
nominated by the District Council for general enquiries etc.

3.18 The District Council will supply local councils with copies of relevant circulars, 
regulations and operational procedures (e.g. delegation; neighbour consultation) on 
request.

3.19 The District Council will notify local councils of all appeals in the weekly list and will 
provide them with copies of plan (if not previously kept), together with details of the 
appellants case and details of the council's grounds for refusal.

3.20 Local councils agree to provide District Council with copies of any correspondence 
sent to the Planning Inspectorate.

3.21 Local councils agree to liaise with officers to endeavour to produce co-ordinated 
arguments where possible.

4. Forward Planning and Conservation

4.1 The District Council will consult local councils about new local plans and alterations 
thereto, supplementary planning guidance, major development or design briefs on 
major sites, major changes to employment/housing/transport/leisure strategies etc 
and significant alterations to public transport services.  The local councils to offer 
reasoned responses within target timescales.

4.2 Local councils will offer advice about local publicity arrangements and to assist where 
possible (e.g. parish newsletters, notice boards).

4.3 The District Council will consult local councils about Conservation Area boundary 
alterations, appraisals and enforcement schemes and will supply information and 
advice on request about Conservation Areas, historic buildings, ancient monuments, 
protected trees, sites of special scientific interest or other nature conservation 
significance.

4.4 The District Council will liaise with local councils regarding the promotion of 
"sustainability" (e.g. environmental audits, publicity about good practice etc.).

4.5 Local councils will advise the District Council of significant damage or deterioration to 
listed buildings, ancient monuments, protected trees, landmark trees and sites of 
nature conservation significance.

4.6 Local councils are encouraged to discuss the implications of strategic planning or 
transport issues with District Council officers and to keep the District Council 
informed about formal comments made to the County Council about the Structure 
Plan, Minerals/Waste Disposal Plans and Transport Plans etc.  The District Council 
undertakes to keep Parish and Town Councils informed about any representations 
being made on such issues where they affect individual parishes or groups of 
parishes.  Issues relating to whole parishes will be notified via the District Council's 
Members' Bulletin or another relevant means.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

4.7 The District Council and local councils will follow the Code of Practice for the 
identification and promotion of sites for affordable housing as exceptions to normal 
planning policy.

4.8 The Annex attached sets out responsibilities and contact details relating to tree 
problems according to location.

5. Village Design Statements

5.1 Local Councils may be instrumental in starting work on Village Design Statements, or 
similar documents, that stress particular features of their communities, using advice 
from the Rural Community Council for Essex.  The District Council supports the 
principles of that process. The Statements would provide a useful context for local 
council comments on planning applications and guidance for the development of the 
village in ways that the local community desires.

5.2 Such a Statement can be a material consideration in dealing with planning 
applications by the district council but the weight given will depend upon their 
inclusion into the adopted Local Development Framework as a Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD).    If a Local Council wishes to prepare a Village Design 
Statement, it is advised to discuss its production at an early stage as significant steps 
are necessary to achieve SPD status.   The District Council will provide advice and 
assistance on the processes involved as resources permit. 



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

LOCAL CHARTER -
PLANNING SERVICES

APPENDIX 6 (ANNEX 1)

ADDENDUM ON DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

1. Service and Quality

1.1 Development control is a process that regulates the development and use of land.  It 
involves the consideration of planning applications, the monitoring of development as 
it takes place, the taking of enforcement action where breaches of control have 
occurred and the provision of information and advice about the system generally and 
individual proposals specifically.  It is a process governed by the law and can be 
complex.

1.2 The objective of development control is to ensure that changes to our physical 
surroundings (buildings and land) are right for their purpose and location.  A 
framework for development is set out in Government Guidance and in more detail in 
structure and local development plans.  These are supplemented by local policies 
and advice.  All these documents are available for inspection at the District Council's, 
Civic Offices.  Planning applications are considered against this framework, in 
particular the adopted development plan for the area, but also any other material 
considerations.

1.3 The aim is to make the best decision about each application, not necessarily the 
quickest.  This means taking into account a proposal's impact upon the environment 
and on the interests of the community.  It may also mean balancing the needs of the 
applicant against the effect a development might have on neighbours and other 
people living nearby.

1.4 Applicants, neighbours and the public generally are all customers of the 
Development Control Service.  Many have little or no experience of how the system 
works.  They must be treated positively, courteously and equally.  This Code sets out 
how the service is delivered in this District.  It defines the services and the standards 
to be met.

1.5 Some planning applications raise complicated or specialist issues, or require 
assessments of their environmental impact.  By their nature such applications will 
take longer to deal with and be subject to some variations in procedure.

1.6 All letters and documents relating to Development Control will be written in plain 
English.

2. Pre-application Discussions:  Information and Advice

2.1 The District Council welcomes discussions before an application is made so as to 
encourage high quality applications and to ensure that they can be dealt with as 
efficiently as possible.  An officer (the Duty Planner) is available each working day to 
provide general information and advice.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

2.2 In practice other officers may be available as well and until 5 p.m.  Most officers are 
usually available between 9 a.m. and 10 a.m.  In the case of more major or complex 
proposals applicants are advised to make a prior appointment to ensure that the 
relevant officers are available.  If advice is sought by letter a response will normally 
be made within ten working days of receipt.  Telephone enquiries not capable of 
being dealt with immediately will be returned within one working day.

2.3 Providing they have been given full details, officers will always try to give accurate 
and objective advice, but it will be without prejudice and subject to the formal 
consideration of an application by the Council.  Relevant information will be given 
about planning policies and previous decisions, and about the Council's requirements 
in relation to such factors as design and servicing standards.  Advice will be given 
about the merits of an application whenever possible.  Applicants will be encouraged 
to discuss some schemes with local councils. 

2.4 Notes for guidance on the completion of planning application forms and the plans 
required to accompany them are available.  The Council produces leaflets etc. to 
assist those intending to make planning applications.  These include leaflets on shop 
front design and trees on development sites, Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings, 
Crime Reduction etc.

2.5 Copies of the Council's planning policies and other relevant documents are available 
to members of the public.  Assistance will be given with enquiries about Council 
procedures, committee dates, elected members and other details related to the 
planning system.

3. Submitting a Planning Application

3.1 Applicants should ensure that the application is submitted correctly with appropriate 
plans and documentation following the receipt of the advice in the pre-application 
discussions.  Officers are available to give help or advice on fees or completing the 
application forms.  Ordnance survey site plans are available for a fee if required in 
association with a planning application.

3.2 If the application is incomplete or invalid (particularly because the plans are 
inadequate) then the applicant will be notified by letter and the submitted plans 
returned within 5 working days with an explanation as to how the deficiency can be 
corrected.  If the proposed development is in fact permitted development or such that 
planning permission is not required, it will normally be returned within 15 working 
days and the fee refunded thereafter.

3.3 Each valid application will be registered and its receipt acknowledged within 
3 working days.  The acknowledgement letter will explain the applicants' rights of 
appeal and give a target date for a decision.

3.4 If applicants choose to use a professional adviser or agent, any discussions, 
correspondence or negotiations about the application will take place directly with the 
adviser.

4. Dealing with an Application

4.1 The officer dealing with the application will be identified within the acknowledgement 
letter.  That officer will visit the site and if access is required a suitable appointment 
will be made if necessary.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

4.2 If the need for further information arises while the application is being dealt with, 
applicants will be notified promptly of the requirements and the reasons for them.  
A time limit for its return will be given.

4.3 If the application is unacceptable as submitted but amendments could be easily 
made to make it more acceptable, suggestions will be made if time constraints permit 
but, since a decision within the given timescale will be paramount, refusals will 
inevitably occur that must be addressed through the submission of a new, revised 
application.   Amendments should be received within a specific period, failing which 
the application will be determined in its original form.

4.4 If amendments are received then more time may be needed to consider the revised 
application before a decision can be made.

4.5 When amendments are made consideration will be given by officers to the 
significance of the amendments.  Major amendments are likely to require consultees 
such as Local Councils to be reconsulted.  Where a second round of consultation has 
not taken place, this will be indicated in the schedule of applications submitted for 
consideration by Area Plans Sub-Committees or the District Development Control 
Committee.  Such references will make reference to drawing numbers for revised 
plans where necessary.

4.6 The making of the proposed amendments will not guarantee approval, as the Council 
might not approve the proposed scheme.

4.7 Applicants will be informed on request about the progress of their application.

5. Notifying the Public

5.1 A Statutory Register of current planning applications, previous decision notices, 
enforcement notices and stop notices are available for inspection by the public during 
normal office hours at Planning Services, Epping Forest District Council, 
Civic Offices, High Street, Epping.  Whenever possible, copies of valid planning 
applications and decision notices will be placed on the Register within 3 working days 
of receipt or of the date when the decision is made.

5.2 The Council notifies neighbours of planning applications and publicises them as 
required by the Town and Country Planning Acts (and in accordance with an adopted 
Code which is available for inspection at Planning Services).  The District Council will 
consider carefully who should be defined as "neighbours" according to local 
circumstances.  In addition the Council will supply a weekly list of submitted 
applications, which is circulated throughout the District and can be seen at public 
libraries and at Buckhurst Hill, Epping, Loughton, Ongar and Waltham Abbey 
centres. If local Councils become aware that site notices have been removed before 
their expiry date, they undertake to notify the case officer in Planning Services so that 
they can be replaced.

5.3 Information and advice can be obtained from the planning officers about current 
planning applications.  Those people notified about a specific planning application will 
be advised how they can make comments upon it and will be renotified and allowed a 
further period for comment in respect of amended proposals.

5.4 Copies of planning applications for sites in Loughton, Buckhurst Hill and Chigwell can 
be viewed at the Council's Information Office at Traps Hill, Loughton (opening times 
9.00 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Mondays to Thursdays and 9.00 a.m. - 4.30 p.m. Fridays).  



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

Plans may be inspected by courtesy of parish/town clerks.  It should be noted that a 
planning officer is not available at these locations and any queries relating to 
applications should be referred to Planning Services at the Civic Offices, Epping.

5.5 Those Local Councils with office facilities may make plans available to the public at 
their offices.

5.6 All comments received will be recorded and considered before the decision on the 
application is reached.  They will be brought to the attention of the Head of Planning 
Services if it is he making the decision, or if the decision is made by a committee, 
members will be told about the comments and their relevance to the application will 
be explained.

5.7 All those making individual representations will be informed of the decision on the 
application within 10 working days of issue of the formal decision notice.  Information 
about the application and its decision will be explained by a planning officer if 
requested.

6. Making the Decision

6.1 The Council publicises its performance targets, indicating the timetable within which it 
is expected to make decisions.  The delegated powers under which the Head of 
Planning Services can deal with certain types of application and other matters are 
also published.

6.2 Once a final decision has been made, the decision notice will be issued to the 
applicant within 3 working days.  Any conditions attached to a permission and 
reasons for refusal will be stated clearly and reasons for the conditions set out.

6.3 Before a decision is reached the applicant and other relevant parties may be 
requested to enter into a planning obligation.  If such an obligation is believed to be 
required the applicant will be informed at the earliest opportunity so that negotiations 
may take place during the normal processing period of the application.  It is almost 
inevitable that, in the event of an obligation being entered into, that the processing 
period will take longer than the expected 8 weeks.

6.4 When an application has been refused, changes or alternatives will be suggested, on 
request, where it is felt these could lead to a favourable decision on a revised 
application.  However no guarantee can be given as to the outcome of the revised 
application.  The right of appeal against the decision will be explained.

6.5 If, after permission has been granted, the applicant wishes to alter the proposal, he 
will be advised, after discussion, as to whether or not the suggested alteration 
requires to be the subject of a new formal application.

6.6 Applicants are reminded that many developments require Building Regulations 
approval, sewer connections, land drainage consent or vehicular crossovers, for 
which separate approvals are necessary.  Information can be obtained from 
Planning Services.

7. Monitoring Development

7.1 Once full planning permission has been given, the applicant may need to submit for 
approval by the Council any details of the development which have not been agreed 
beforehand.  These details will be described in conditions attached to the permission 



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

and approval must be sought before development can take place.  In the case of 
straightforward matters such as materials to be used, a decision will be issued or a 
request for further information will be made within 10 working days of receipt.  In the 
case of more complex matters such as landscaping schemes, a decision will be 
issued within 20 working days.

7.2 Development must be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

7.3 It is important that the Council's requirements are met and the permission is correctly 
implemented.  Any departure from the approved plans must be agreed in writing by 
the Council prior to it being carried out.

7.4 The parish focus of the Local Councils is recognised, particularly where this has been 
formalised (for example the Parish Tree Wardens).  Thus they act as an extra set of 
“eyes and ears” in monitoring development, and prompting officers, including 
enforcement officers, where they have clear evidence that work is not proceeding to 
plan, and is in prominent locations.

7.5 When the Council receives a report alleging a departure from the approved plans, the 
site or the premises will be inspected and other information sought to establish the 
facts.  The procedures followed in such circumstances are set out in the Council's 
Enforcement Codes of Practice.  Resources in this area have been increased.

8. Appeals

8.1 If called upon to do so the Council will defend all its decisions at appeal, but it will 
also be prepared to review decisions or individual reasons for refusal if there is a 
sound basis for so doing.

8.2 The Council will seek to present the best quality evidence in defending its decisions.

8.3 The Council will endeavour to meet the requirements and time-tables imposed by the 
Planning Inspectorate/Department of the Environment, Transport and the Regions for 
the preparation of the Council's evidence or will provide reasons in writing upon 
request explaining why, exceptionally, it has not proved possible in the individual 
cases.

8.4 The appellant's agent, or the appellant if there is no agent, will receive copies of all 
correspondence sent to the Planning Inspectorate (naturally, the Council expects the 
same courtesy of an appellant or agent in return).  At an appropriate time the Council 
will notify third parties of the receipt of appeals and the manner in which they will 
determined.

9. Progress Reporting

9.1 Councillors receive regular reports about decisions and performance in key areas 
such as appeals, costs of appeals and the outcomes of Section 106 obligations.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

CODE OF PRACTICE -
PLANNING SERVICES

APPENDIX 6 (ANNEX 2)

ADDENDUM ON ENFORCEMENT OF PLANNING CONTROL

1. Policy

1.1 The Council's policy on Enforcement as set out in the adopted District-Wide Plan is 
as follows:

"In determining what, if any, enforcement action to take where development has 
been undertaken either without the requisite planning permission or consent or in 
breach of a planning condition the council will:

(a) take prompt, appropriate enforcement action in cases where:

(i) it considers the development to be demonstrably harmful to public amenity or 
public interest and would not gain approval even with the imposition of any planning 
conditions; or

(ii) a planning application has been invited but has not been submitted;

(b) serve a breach of condition notice in cases where it considers that the breach 
is demonstrably harmful to public amenity or public interest;

(c) serve a planning contravention notice or seek a prompt planning application 
in cases where it considers that the development is demonstrably harmful to 
public amenity or public interest but could be made acceptable by imposing 
planning conditions;

(d) allow an appropriate and reasonable period of time for compliance with its 
requirements while ensuring that good planning is not prejudiced by virtue of 
the development having been undertaken;

(e) where possible, issue a stop notice in cases where it considers the 
development to be exceptionally harmful to public amenity or public interest;

(f) commence appropriate legal proceedings in cases where there is evidence 
that an offence has been committed."

1.2 The District Council's actions on enforcement of planning controls will, at all times, be 
dependent on available resources.  The District Council undertakes to keep under 
constant review the resources required within the constraints of Council budgets.

2. Procedure

2.1 There may be some exceptional circumstances where the following targets are not 
met.  The time taken to deal with an enforcement complaint will also be dictated by 
the time officers give to a person to comply with a request or offer to submit a 
planning application.  The time given to a person very much depends on the nature 
of the planning problem and what the breach of planning control is.  However, the 
following is the preferred level of service for enforcement.

2.2 An incoming complaint is dated and passed to the Principal Officer.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

2.3 The Principal Officer will give the complaint a priority level;  A, B, C, D and allocate 
the case to an Enforcement Officer.

2.4 Category A implies a severe and/or urgent case requiring immediate attention.  For 
example, this would include harmful works to a listed building or new physical 
development which would present a serious danger to members of the public;  works 
to a tree subject to legal protection.  A site visit should be carried out within 7 working 
hours.

2.5 Category B implies a less severe and/or less urgent case requiring prompt attention.  
For example, this would include noise disturbance or nuisance to residential amenity 
arising from a breach of planning control;  the erection of unauthorised buildings 
having an extreme adverse effect on residential amenities e.g. an extension 
dramatically reducing daylight;  or activities which are clearly detrimental to the 
environment and appear to be intensifying e.g. the dumping of waste material.  A site 
visit within two weeks is expected.

2.6 Category C implies a use having a relatively limited degree of disturbance at unsocial 
hours.  A building or extension that fails to conform to the Council's design 
guidelines, but has only a limited impact on the amenities of adjacent residential 
property or the street scene.  A development that is not in accordance with national 
or local planning policies, but one which is not in danger of becoming time debarred 
by virtue of the "four" or "ten" year rules.  This could also include unfulfilled conditions 
for example.  A site visit within six weeks is expected.

2.7 Category D includes minor matters such as checking landscape conditions, 
neighbour or civil disputes between parties.  Unauthorised satellite dishes or 
advertisements that are sited in a harmless position.  A site visit within eight weeks is 
expected.

2.8 The case will be recorded on a colour coded card and placed on the "battle board" to 
show the progress of the complaint.  The investigation of the complaint will involve 
checking Council and other records.  Assessing the proposal against planning 
legislation, policy and planning guidelines.  Pending the outcome of these 
investigations will determine what course of action shall be taken.  This may require a 
report being prepared for Committee recommending enforcement action or 
proceedings or indeed that it is not expedient to take enforcement action.

2.9 Depending on the outcome of the investigations the complainant and other interested 
parties, Councillors etc., will be advised of what steps are being taken or what the 
outcome of the investigation was.

2.10 There are seven key events possible in resolving an enforcement complaint:

(a) no action appropriate;

(b) inviting and receipt of a planning application (see also 2.11 below);

(c) voluntary cessation of the use, or the alteration of the development to meet 
approved plans, or the making of a revised proposal, which is considered 
acceptable;

(d) serving an enforcement notice (or breach of condition notice);
(e) serving a stop notice;



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

(f) taking criminal or injunctive court action;

(g) action by another service or organisation.

The level and nature of action will have a significant impact on the application of 
resources.

2.11 Retrospective planning applications will not be invited by officers where it is obvious 
that they have no prospect of being granted.

3. Communications

3.1 Communications with complainants and those complained of, is an important aspect 
of the enforcement process.  The targets outlined below relate to these key events, 
and also have attendant administrative requirements as follows:

(a) acknowledge within 5-10 working days receipt of external complaints.

(b) within 10 working days of a key event write to complainant or interested party 
advising them of the findings of the enforcement officer.

(c) within 10 working days of the receipt of correspondence from a complainant a 
response will be sent provided that the correspondence does not raise 
complex or legal issues (this would not include repetitious or vexatious 
correspondence or correspondence which had already been covered in an 
earlier response).

(d) after three months the complainant will be given an update of the progress on 
a complaint.

(e) in the absence of a planning application, then all parties be given notice that 
the matter will be reported to the relevant Planning Committee within 5 
working days of that Committee, except in urgent cases or in exceptional 
circumstances.

4. Confidentiality

4.1 The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 indicates that certain types 
of information are confidential.  Of relevance to Planning Enforcement, are the 
following:

(a) the identity of those indicating breaches of planning control;

(b) financial/business affairs;

(c) where Counsel's opinion is involved or contemplated; and

(d) where prior disclosure would reveal that Notices or Orders are proposed.

The District Council will, in most cases, debate enforcement items in public session, 
as the exercise of these powers is in the public interest.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

4.2 As far as possible and recognising the above limits, complaints, other than from 
public organisations, will be kept confidential.  Similarly the affairs of 
operators/owners of businesses will also be respected.

4.3 However, it must be recognised that in pursuing certain complaints (e.g. my 
neighbour's apples fall in my garden and there is only one apple tree) it is obvious 
who the complainant must be.  In addition, if written comments are made about 
planning applications, in other public arenas, in connection with a planning appeal, or 
in court, then to secure control, that initial confidentiality can no longer be relied 
upon.

4.4 At present, cases are charted manually on a "battle board" which includes the 
following territories:

‘Pending.’ ‘Under Investigation.’ ‘Application Invited.’  ‘Application Received.’  ‘Next 
Committee.’  ‘Enforcement Authorised.’  ‘Notice Issued.’  ‘Notice Appealed.’  
‘Prosecutions.’

4.5 Each Enforcement Officer's coloured case cards are checked monthly where the total 
time elapsed since first logged has exceeded two months and the case has not yet 
generated a planning application or a report to Committee.  The target is to minimise 
the number of such cases and to review them each month to see if any change in 
approach is called for.

5. Site Visits

5.1 In investigating breaches of planning control, or suspected breaches, Enforcement 
Officers or others exercising the same powers bestowed by the Authority, will not 
necessarily take the same approach as other officers.  If they are asked to 
investigate someone doing something, in particular a use that others consider they 
should not be doing, they may well wish to monitor the situation at random.  They are 
exceedingly unlikely to make an appointment to forewarn the operator complained of.  
Indeed, to do so can enable some operators to effectively hide what they are doing to 
the Enforcement Officer, but not the neighbour who is complaining and who then 
cannot understand why the Enforcement Officer cannot see what is upsetting them. 
Similarly, an officer arriving at a site may well briefly note what they can see before 
marching up to the door to announce their presence.  Not all activities complained of 
take place in normal working hours, and Enforcement Officers do visit sites outside 
those hours.

5.2 In an age of concern about crime or worry about "who is up to what" this is difficult to 
reconcile with the Council's Code concerning safer communities.  However, each 
Enforcement Officer or other officer carrying out similar duties has a name badge, 
and other specific rights of entry documentation which can be inspected on request 
and a courteous explanation of what the officer is doing will be given.

5.3 The rights of entry are satisfactorily used on an informal basis in the vast majority of 
cases and such co-operation is appreciated.  The rights stem from the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 Sections 196A-196C.  The rights are briefly as follows:

- Admission to any land at any reasonable hour

- Admission to dwelling house if twenty-four hours notice has been given to the 
occupier



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

The rights can be secured formally if they are denied and wilfully obstructing an 
officer is an offence.

5.4 Some complaints may be referred to other specialists, such as the Council's 
Landscape Officer, or to other departments of the Council, who will then be expected 
to process the matter.  If the Enforcement Officer cannot control the matter, but 
knows a man who can, then the complainant/commentator will be advised whom to 
contact.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 7

RESEARCH AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

1. Introduction

1.1 Research and Democratic Services is at the corporate centre of the District Council 
and supports work of the elected members and top management in decision-making 
processes.

1.2 The service operates a number of services of direct relevance to local councils and 
these are outlined below.

2. Code of Conduct

2.1 Through the District Council's Monitoring Officer, the Standards Committee offers 
advice, support, training in respect of District Council and local council codes of 
conduct.  The District Council undertakes to make available:

(a) advice to Parish and Town Council clerks and local councillors on the 
interpretation of Codes of Conduct and associated protocols;

(b) guidance on registration and declaration of interests;

(c) guidance on complaint procedures (including those concerning the Standards 
Board for England);

(d) the publication of public notices required by Government regulations on 
behalf of local councils on a cost sharing basis;

(e) advice and administrative procedures in relation to registration of gifts and 
hospitality and proper use of members' support facilities;

(f) advice on dispensations for Councillors from the effects of prejudicial 
interests;

(g) training and information (including relevant sections of the information bulletin 
provided for District Council members);

(h) liaison with Human Resources Division of the District Council regarding 
allocation of spare places in officer training courses to Parish and Town Council 
Clerks for a suitable fee.

2.2 Local Councils undertake to assist the District Councils in the following respects:

(a) compiling and forwarding to the District Council registration of interest forms, 
declarations of acceptance of office, registrations of gifts and hospitality in respect of 
parish and town councillors;

(b) contributing to the cost of public notices required by Government regulations;

(c) committing themselves to ensuring that local council members participate in 
training sessions for councillors arranged by the Standards Committee ensuring that 
members keep up to date;



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

(d) advising the Epping Forest District Council Standards Committee of any 
changes to their Codes of Conduct;

(e) providing information relevant to the ethical framework to the Standards 
Committee or the Monitoring Officer when required.

3. Member Remuneration

3.1 The District Council undertakes to provide through its Parish Council Remuneration 
Panel advice on the scheme of member remuneration available to local councils 
under the Local Government Act 2000, including:

(a) participation allowances;

(b) travel and subsistence payments.

3.2 Local Councils undertake to advise the District Council in advance of changes to their 
remuneration arrangements they are planning to make.

4. Standing Orders

4.1 The District Council will, on request, provide advice on the Standing Orders operated 
by any local council or on points of interpretation relating thereto.  The District 
Council acknowledges the right of any local council to determine its own procedures 
as bodies independent of the District Council.

5. Electoral Matters

5.1 For the purposes of local council elections, nomination of candidates, electoral 
expenses, by-elections, co-options and casual vacancies, the District Council, 
through the Returning Officer, undertakes to provide advice and support in meeting 
statutory requirements.

5.2 The Returning Officer undertakes to consider suggestions from local councils on 
polling and counting centres bearing in mind the need to make the best use of 
available resources and achieve the most efficient electoral arrangements.

5.3 The District Council will provide advice to local councils on:

(a) periodic electoral reviews;

(b) reviews of parish boundaries;

(c) creation, amalgamation or winding up of parishes.

(d) Parish polls.

5.4 The District Council undertakes to provide in advance estimates of the likely costs of 
forthcoming local council elections so as to assist with parish precept calculations.

5.5 The District Council undertakes to keep its electoral arrangements under constant 
review so as to assist local councils in keeping their electoral costs as low as 
possible.

5.6 Local Councils undertake to liaise with the District Council on:



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

(a) Policy and counting arrangements;

(b) Casual vacancies and co-option of local councillors.

6. Democratic Services

6.1 The District Council undertakes to provide the following information to local councils:

(a) District Council agenda and minutes electronically or by traditional means;

(b) advice and written material on public speaking at Area Plans Sub-Committees 
and the District Development Control Committee;

(c) advice and guidance on standing orders and legal requirements for meetings;

(d) information about the operation of the Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee;

(e) relevant sections of the Members' Information Bulletin produced for District 
Councillors.

6.2 The District Council undertakes to supply through its electronic extranet (COMS 
system) electronic notifications of agenda, minutes and similar material when 
published.

7. Chairman of Council

7.1 The District Council will liaise with local councils on matters relating to the Chairman 
of the Council's civic role, including:

(a) civic events;

(b) inviting the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Council to attend specific 
parish occasions;

(c) the Chairman's Charity;  and

(d) Protocol and precedence.

7.2 Local Councils undertake to provide information of relevance or interest to the District 
Council, whether requested or not, in a timely way.  Local councils undertake to 
provide sufficient resources to enable this to be achieved.

8. Public Relations and Information Services

8.1 The District Council undertakes to assist local councils by supplying written and other 
information relating to District Council services.

8.2 The District Council undertakes to pay for the maintenance of its notice boards.  
Local Councils undertake to monitor the condition and use of these boards and to 
post information on these boards on behalf of the District Council.  In exchange, the 
District Council undertakes to provide space on the boards for Local Council 
materials to be posted.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

8.3 The District Council will also assist Parish and Town Councils in improving their 
public profile through its website.

8.4 Provide Town and Parish Councils with a complimentary copy of its annual year book 
and diary.

8.5 On application to the District Council, advice on public relations and information 
issues will be available from the Council's Public Relations Officer.

8.6 Local Councils may bring forward ideas for inclusion of articles of broad interest in 
the District Council's "Forester" newspaper, subject to the constraints of editorial 
space and cost.

9. Projects and Partnerships

9.1 Advice is available to local councils from the Projects and Partnerships Section of the 
Policy Unit including:

(a) grant aid;

(b) safer communities and crime issues;

(c) community legal service.

(NB. Economic Development; Environmental Co-ordination; Young People)



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 8

CRIME AND DISORDER AND ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

1. Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 states that all relevant authorities – 
which includes Town and Parish Councils – have a duty to consider the impact of all 
their functions and decisions on crime and disorder in their local area.  

2. The Act introduces a partnership approach to local crime reduction and Town and 
Parish Councils should be partners in that process as they are in an ideal position to 
represent the views of their communities and ensure that local crime reduction 
strategies represent those views.

3. The most effective way to reduce crime and anti social behaviour at a local level is by 
following an evidence based, problem solving approach.  The District Council will 
invite the Town and Parish councils to discuss areas of concern.  Local councils will 
respond in a similar manner to requests from the District Council.

4. Part 4 (Sections 30-36) of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 gives the police, 
working with local authorities, new powers to target action in problem areas to help 
communities remove intimidation and anti-social behaviour from their streets.  The 
powers enable a senior police officer to designate an area where there is persistent 
anti-social behaviour and a problem with groups causing intimidation. The local 
authority must also agree to the designation, this decision will be made as part of the 
strategic work of the Crime and Disorder Partnership.  When the District Council is 
approached by police with regard to designating an area under these powers the 
District Council will consult the relevant local council and their views will be taken into 
account when a decision is reached.  The District Council will inform the relevant 
local council of this decision.

5. Local councils can report any concerns regarding anti-social behaviour directly to the 
District Council’s Anti Social Behaviour Co-ordinator who can offer advice and take 
up concerns with relevant partner agencies as deemed necessary.  The District 
Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Co-ordinator will enter the details onto the ASB 
database and will provide details of any outcome as appropriate and in accordance 
with Data Protection guidance.

6. The District Council undertakes to work with local councils to identify needs in 
relation to young people, along with guidance and support in seeking solutions.  The 
local council will likewise undertake to work with the District Council to identify same 
needs.

7. The District Council undertakes to inform local councils of any research or initiatives 
being undertaken in their area.  The local council will likewise inform the District 
Council of any research or initiatives being undertaken in their area.

8. On January 10th 2006 the government launched its Respect Action Plan, which 
focuses on six strands of work to “rebuild the bonds of community”.  Every area is to 
be given the chance to have a Neighbourhood Charter, which will set clear service 
standards and will empower communities to trigger a response.  The government is 
to publish a draft National Neighbourhood Agreement for consultation in the spring.  
Following the publication of this draft the District Council undertakes to involve local 
councils in this consultation process.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

9. A quarterly newsletter, “CDRP News” (and further publicity as appropriate), produced 
by the Epping Forest Crime Reduction Team will provide a means of regularly 
highlighting some of the good work that is being achieved by working together with 
partner agencies.  The District Council will provide a copy of this newsletter to local 
councils, which will also serve to update on new legislation and the progress of the 
Respect Agenda.  Local councils are invited to feedback any comments to the Crime 
Reduction Team.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 9

SURPLUS LAND AND PROPERTY

1. Introduction

1.1 This document sets out the terms and conditions of an agreement between Epping 
Forest District Council and the Town and Parish Councils within its area.

1.2 The purpose of the agreement is to set down a process whereby the parties to the 
agreement will give each other prior notice of their intention to dispose of surplus 
land or property.  It also puts in place a procedure for councils to indicate an interest 
in acquiring that land or property for use in connection with a statutory duty or some 
other public benefit.

1.3 Definitions

For the purposes of this agreement:

"Public Benefit" means any use where the primary purpose is to provide a facility 
(including amenity/open space) of benefit to the public in general or to the population 
of the immediate area in particular.

"Applicant Authority" means the authority notifying its interest in acquiring the surplus 
land or property.

"Disposing Authority" means the authority declaring the land or property surplus to 
requirement and indicating its interest to sell it.

2. Which Land or Property is covered by the Agreement?

2.1 Only land or property declared to be surplus to the requirements of the disposing 
authority is covered by the scheme.  It therefore follows that the following types of 
land and property are excluded:

(a) land being made available to a specific third party in order to fulfil a statutory 
duty, for example, to a registered social landlord to meet local housing needs;

(b) shops, commercial or industrial premises being re-let through the normal 
process;

(c) small pieces of land on former housing estates being sold to the occupier of 
neighbouring dwellings;  and

(d) land or property where disposal to a third party is essential to achieve an 
identified council objective;

2.2 This list is illustrative of the types of land and property transaction excluded from this 
agreement, it is not intended to be exhaustive. The intention of the Charter is, 
however, not to restrict unreasonably property transfer between Councils if it is in the 
public interest to do so.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

3. Notification of Land or Property Declared Surplus

3.1 Where a Council has land or property, which it declares surplus to its requirements, 
in accordance with the spirit of this agreement, it will send notice of that fact to 
adjoining local councils.  The notice will be issued following the decision of the 
appropriate committee to dispose of the land or property in question and before it is 
advertised on the open market or offered through private treaty.

4. Registration of Interest in Acquisition

4.1 Notified Councils are required to take immediate action if they wish to acquire the 
land or property in question.  They will be allowed a period of 6 weeks in which to 
notify the disposing authority of their interest in a possible acquisition.

4.2 In notifying an interest of possible acquisition the applicant authority must:

(a) submit a statement showing the intended use of the land or property in 
question and setting out the way in which the use fulfils either a statutory duty or 
some other public benefit referred to in paragraph 1.2 of this agreement;  and

(b) demonstrate that it has the necessary funds to proceed with the purchase of 
the land or property concerned, or is able to raise them within a reasonable 
timescale.

4.3 The land or property in question will be offered for sale on a freehold basis.  The sale 
will be at the full open market value as determined between the parties or by the 
District Valuer where agreement cannot be reached.

4.4 In some circumstances the sale may be at an under value by virtue of the Local 
Government Act 1972 General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 Order.

The specified circumstances are:

(a) that the disposing authority considers that the purpose for which the land is to 
be disposed is likely to contribute to the achievement of any one or more of the 
following objects in respect of the whole or any part of its area, or of all or any 
persons resident or present in its area;

(i) the promotion or improvement of economic well-being;

(ii) the promotion or improvement of social well-being;

(iii) the promotion or improvement of environmental well-being;  and

(b) the difference between the unrestricted value of the land to be disposed of 
and the consideration for the disposal does not exceed £2,000,000.

In all other circumstances any discount would require specific consent of the 
Secretary of State.  

4.5 Any sale will be subject to an appropriate covenant or covenants restricting the use 
to the purpose agreed linked to a right for the disposing authority to buy back the 
land or property in question at the then market value taking account of the cost of any 
improvements carried out to the property. Should any use other than that specified in 



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

the original sale be proposed by the applicant authority, this will be considered by the 
District Council if it is demonstrably in the public interest.

4.6 On receipt of a notice of interest, the disposing authority will:

(a) acknowledge the receipt of the notice within 21 days;

(b) check that the proposed use complies with the spirit of the agreement and 
that the applicant authority is in a position to proceed with the purchase if terms can 
be agreed;

(c) refer the request to the relevant Committee or Cabinet as appropriate who 
will:

(i) consider whether or not the sale can be authorised;

(ii) consider whether or not a discount can and should be offered;

(iii) dependent upon (ii) consider the amount of any discount;

(d) make any application required to the Secretary of State for consent to the 
sale having regard to paragraph 4.4 above;

(e) within 6 weeks of receipt of authority from the relevant Committee/Cabinet to 
the sale, and if required consent of the Secretary of State, notify the applicant 
authority in writing of the terms and conditions of the proposed sale;  

(f) following confirmation by the applicant authority of agreement to the terms 
and conditions of the prepared sale, the disposing authority will instruct its legal 
representatives with 21 days of that decision to prepare a draft sale contract;

(g) the disposing authority’s legal representative shall issue a draft sale contract 
within 2 months following the date of notification under (f) above to the applicant 
authority for consideration, subject to both parties mutually agreeing an extension of 
time if necessary; and

(h) the applicant authority shall complete the sale and purchase within 3 months 
of the draft contract being issued by the dispensing authority, subject to both parties 
mutually agreeing a reasonable extension of time if necessary.

4.7 The notice giving details of the land or property available under this Agreement may 
specify response dates, which must be complied with.  The purpose of this will be to 
establish a timetable, which will fit in with the relevant committee meeting dates, etc.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 10
WASTE MANAGEMENT

Waste Management section to be updated after the District Council had reviewed its 
waste collection policy. A revised appendix will be issued just as soon as the District 
Council’s policy on this issue is settled.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 11

QUALITY PARISH COUNCILS

1. Introduction

1.1 Parish and Town Councils may seek accreditation as “quality” parish councils. This 
will require them to apply to a County Panel, which will consider applications against 
national accreditation standards.

1.2 Once accreditation has been achieved, local councils may enter into negotiations 
with the District Council for devolution of functions and services, including:

(a) Noise and nuisance abatement;
(b) Development control;
(c) Aspects of management of museums;
(d) Leisure and tourism;
(e) Street lighting (except principal routes);
(f) Litter collection and litter control measures; 
(g) Parking restrictions (on-street parking now responsibility of Essex County 

Council but is devolved to EFDC under an agency agreement);
(h) Control of Markets;
(i) Street Cleansing;
(j) Recycling provisions;
(k) Street naming;
(l) Issue of Bus and Rail passes and other transport voucher schemes;
(m) Tree preservation orders; and
(n) Public conveniences.

Other functions which could be devolved are not the responsibility of the District Council.

2. Charters

2.1 Agreed arrangements for devolution of functions and services will result in charters 
specific to the partner authorities in relation to the service agreements reached.

2.2 The District Council undertakes to consider proposals for individual charters when 
received, and will undertake to ensure that double taxation does not arise.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

APPENDIX 13

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
ORGANISATION STRUCTURE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
(D Macnab – Acting Chief Executive)
(Head of Paid Services)

DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE
- D Macnab

Customer Service;
Performance Management & Equalities;
Compliments and Complaints;
Overview & Scrutiny lead officer;
Partnership Working;
North Weald Airfield (strategic/policy issues)
Head of Emergency Planning Team; 
Business Continuity;
PR & Information;
C & C Services;
(Museum, Sports, Arts, City Dev);
Marketing & Events and 
Youth Council. 

DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL & 
STREET SCENE - John Gilbert:

Environment Health;
Crime & Disorder;
Safer Communities;
Neighbourhoods;
Licensing Enforcement;
Leisure Management;
Grounds Maintenance & Arboriculture; 
North Weald Airfield (operational issues);
Leisure Facilities (WASC);
Waste management; 
Car Parking;
Land Drainage;
Flood Aviation and
Highways General.

DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – 
John Preston:

Development Control;
Planning Enforcement;
Forward Planning;
Economic Development;
Town Centre Enhancement
Sustainability;
Landscape and Tree Protection;
Heritage;
Countrycare Biodiversity
Building Control;
Contaminated Land- Planning Applications. 

DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SUPPORT 
SERVICES - Colleen O’Boyle:

HR;
Payroll;
Health & Safety;
Admin & Sec;
Legal Services;
Local Land Charges;
Licensing (Policy Strategy);
Fleet Operations;
Emergency Planning Facilities 
(Accommodations Supts/Duty Officers 
depots);
Reprographics;
Estates & Valuation.



Rev 2
(Revised: S. Tautz (June 2016)

DIRECTOR OF HOUSING - Alan Hall:

Housing Repairs & Maintenance;
Architecture;
Housing Building Maintenance;
Housing Landlord Functions(Housing 
management, sheltered housing etc);
Housing Options;
Private Sector Housing and
Housing Resources.

FINANCE AND INFORMATION & 
COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY – 
Bob Palmer:

Benefits;
Revenues;
Debt Recovery;
Accountancy;
Insurance;
Concessionary Fares;
ICT and
Telecommunications. 

 ASSISTANT TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE - 
Ian Willett:

Civic Support;
Deputy Monitoring Officer;
Freedom of Information Officer;
Deputy RIPA Officer;
Grants & Voluntary Sector;
Research and Policy;
Internal Audit Plan;
Reviews of Governance;
Processes;
Investigations;
Consultancy and Advice.



Report to Local Council’s Liaison 
Committee

Date of meeting: 4 July 2016

Subject: Epping Forest District Local Plan – Progress Report

Officer contact for further information: K Polyzoides, Assistant Director Forward Plan 
and Economic Development (01992 56 4119)

Committee Secretary: M Jenkins (01992 56 4607)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

To note the report on the recent progress made in respect of the Local Plan.

Report:

1. Local Plan Timetable

An updated Local Development Scheme is due to go to Cabinet on 21 July 2016 to reflect the 
new timescale for  the development of the Local Plan.  The key milestones prior to consultation on 
the Draft Plan – preferred approach scheduled for this Autumn are:

- 8 October 2016:    Report to Cabinet to consider draft plan for consultation
- 18 October 2016:  Report to Full Council
- 31 October 2016:  Start of 6 week formal consultation

This will tie in with the publication of draft plans by East Herts, Uttlesford and Harlow Districts who 
are all proposing to publish their draft plans in the Autumn for a 6 week period seeking 
representations on soundness under Regulation 19 of the Local Plans regulations. There are 
proposals to coordinate the publications and it is likely that East Herts will start their 6 weeks on 3 
November 2016.

The Government has made clear their expectation that all local planning authorities should have a 
post NPPF local plan in place and have set out their commitments to take action to get plans in 
place and ensure there are up to date policies.  This includes intervening where no local plan has 
been produced by early 2017 to arrange for the plan to be written, in consultation with local 
people, to accelerate production of a local plan.  One of the penalties proposed for not having 
produced a plan (it is not clear yet how this will be interpreted) is the loss of new homes bonus.  It 
is clear that the Council needs to make good progress this year and to have consulted on our 
Draft Plan Preferred Approach prior to the cut off date.  NLP published a research report in April 
2016 setting out a review of local plan progress.   Their report identified 21 authorities most at risk 
of intervention and this names Epping Forest, Uttlesford and East Herts Districts.

2. Working with neighbouring authorities/duty to cooperate

Further work is being undertaken to develop the housing target for the district and to discuss and 
agree at the Co-operation for Sustainable Development Board how the growth will be distributed 
across the Housing Market Area.  This work is being progressed with the 4 authorities within the 
Strategic Housing Market Area using support from ATLAS and facilitated by AECOM to assess 
the impact of strategic options in the four authorities to meet the overall OAN figure for the SHMA 
area.    The Board on 6 June 2016 was provided with an update on progress with the evaluation 
of the 5 spatial options previously agreed for testing.  Work is underway to  evaluate the options 



through:

1. Transport modelling (what are the transport implications of the different 
options?)

2. Sustainability appraisal (how do the options effect air quality, biodiversity, water 
etc.?)

3. Deliverability appraisal (what infrastructure is necessary to deliver the different 
options?)

4. Habitat Regulations Assessment (how will the different options affect Epping 
Forest?)

The Board also received three draft memoranda of understanding: one with Highways England to 
cover strategic transport matters, one with Natural England to cover Air Quality and a third to set 
out the vision for the SHMA area and to agree the distribution of growth.  A final decision on the 
preferred strategic spatial option is expected to be taken on 18 July 2016 and is critical to meeting 
the timeline for consultation.

As previously reported, officers are working with SHMA partners using CLG funding to assess the 
strategic sites around Harlow.  This work will feed into the Council’s site selection work (see 
below).  The work is being undertaken by AECOM and a draft final report is due to be ready for 
the Board meeting on 18 July 2016.

3. Member Workshops

Since the last meeting in March, further workshops have been held on climate change (24 May 
2016) and transport accessibility and parking standards (31 May 2016).  A further workshop is 
programmed for 16 July 2016 to cover development management policies and there will be a 
briefing on the proposals for the local plan consultation on 28 July 2016.  

4. Key Local Plan Evidence

Work continues on finalising the evidence base reports which will be used to inform the policies 
included in the Draft Plan (Preferred Approach) that the Council consults on later this year.  

Green Belt Review

A draft report has now been received and officers are providing comments back to the 
consultants.  The results of this work will be used to inform the Draft Plan and will be published 
as part of the consultation.

Settlement Capacity Work

A draft has been received and officers are collating comments to send to the consultants.   All 
the sites identified have been fed into the updated SLAA and the site selection process. 

Site selection and infrastructure delivery work

The Council has appointed Arup to undertake the site selection work in order to provide options 
on the preferred sites for allocation.  Mark Beard has provided advice on the methodology for 
site selection of employment, housing and traveller sites.  Stage 2 of the process is almost 
complete and notwithstanding a number of logistical problems that have had to be overcome 
with data is on track with what is a very challenging timescale.  A total of 33 criteria have been 
used to assess all the sites.  We will be sending out proformas to promotors of sites to ensure 
we have correct and up to date information, which will be important when assessing the 
availability of sites.  Some of the sites were submitted as far back as 2008 so this is an 
important element of the work.  For some of the sites we do not have details of ownership and 



this will entail undertaking land registry searches.  This needs to be completed in order to take 
complete the final shortlist of sites for potential allocation by the end of July so that they can be 
included in the draft plan for consultation. 

We are also preparing an Infrastructure Delivery Plan to support the sites being selected for the 
Draft Plan.  Initial work has been undertaken to tie in with the site selection work programme to 
identify physical, social and community infrastructure requirements of the candidate sites.  

Other evidence

Essex County Council has undertaken a historic environment characterisation study of the 
District with a draft final report now received.   Other evidence to be completed will be to ensure 
that the Employment Land Review information is up to date, information to feed into the tourism 
section on visitor accommodation needs over the plan period, additional work around the future 
of the glasshouse industry and transport accessibility work at district level

5. Neighbourhood Plans

The Council and the Parish have received the examiner’s report for the Moreton, Bobbingworth 
and the Lavers Neighbourhood Plan.  The Examiner found that it did not meet the basic 
conditions and as required it is proposed to reporting this to Cabinet on 21 July 2016 with a 
recommendation that the plan does not go to referendum.  Eight other Parish and Town 
Councils have been designated as neighbourhood planning areas (Chigwell, Epping, Buckhurst 
Hill, Theydon Bois, Loughton, North Weald Bassett, Epping Upland and Waltham Abbey).




	Agenda
	1 Webcasting Introduction
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Community Resilience and Workshop
	6 Local Charter - Review
	7 Epping Forest District Local Plan - Progress

